
 
COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 
Thursday 24 September 2009 at 6.30 pm  
Council Chamber - Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire YO17 7HH  
 
Agenda  

 

1 Apologies for Absence   
 

 

2 Minutes    

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting of the 
Community Services Committee held on 23 July 2009. 
 

3 Urgent Business    

 To receive notice of any urgent business that the Chairman considers should 
be dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 
100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest    

 Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the 
Code of Conduct.  Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a 
Committee or Council are required to disclose the existence and nature of 
that interest.  This requirement is not discharged by merely declaring a 
personal interest without further explanation. 
 

PART A - Matters dealt with under delegated powers or matters determined 
by Committee 
 

5 Performance and Finance Report - Council Aims 1 - 4  (Pages 7 - 62) 
 

 

6 Housing - Performance Report  (Pages 63 - 66) 
 

 

7 Policy in Relation to Wild Animals on Council Owned Land  (Pages 67 - 
70) 

 

 

 

 

 
Ryedale House 
Malton 
North Yorkshire 
YO17 7HH 
 
Tel.   01653 600666 
Fax:  01653 696801 
 
E-mail: 
 

COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

COMMITTEE 
 

Chief Executive 
Janet Waggott 

 
Corporate Director 
Marie-Ann Jackson 

 
Corporate Director (s151) 

Paul Cresswell 

 
 

Please Contact: Mrs Liz 
Hayes 
Extension:           
 

 Wednesday 16 September 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

8 Low Carbon Economy - Regional Information Papers  (Pages 71 - 112) 
 

 

PART B - Matters referred to Council 
 

9 Monthly Winter Garden Waste Collection Pilot  (Pages 113 - 120) 
 

 

10 Any Other Business that the Chairman Decides to be Urgent   
 

 



Community Services  23 July 2009 

Community Services Committee 

 
held at Ryedale House, Malton 
on Thursday 23 July 2009 
 
Present 

 
Councillors Mrs Cowling (in the Chair) Mrs Frank, Hawkins, Hemesley, Hope, Mrs 
Keal, Knaggs and Woodward. 
 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observers: Councillors Cussons, Cottam and Raper 
 
In Attendance 

 
Mrs B Bennett, Mrs F Brown, J Brown, Mrs MA Jackson, R Etherington, Mrs E Hayes, 
J Rudd, Mrs C Slater. 
 
Minutes 

 
15 Apologies for Absence 
  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Arnold and Ms 
Warriner. 
 

16 Minutes 
  

The minutes of a meeting of the Community Services & Licensing Committee 
held on 11 June 2009 were presented.  
 

Resolved 
 

 That the minutes of the meeting of the Community Services  Committee 
held  on 11 June 2009 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record. 
 
Part A – Matters dealt with under delegated powers or matters determined 
by the Committee 
 

17 Annual Report 
 
Members considered a report which presented the Ryedale District Council 
Annual Report for 2008-09. 
 
The Annual Report concluded the reporting in relation to the corporate Plan for 
2006-09.  It also presented a summary of the ambitions of the council and it’s 
clear strategic direction.  
 
 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the format and content of the Annual Report be agreed. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Community Services  23 July 2009 

(b) That the achievements against the priorities of the Corporate Plan 
for 2006-09 be noted. 

 
Councillor Woodward asked that his vote of abstention be recorded, as the 
affordable housing target had not been met. 
 

18 Government Action to Prevent Repossessions and the Development of a 
Sub-Regional Action Plan 
 
Members considered a report which informed them of the wide range of pro-
active steps being taken by Government in an effort to reduce the impact of the 
present economic conditions and provided details of a proposed sub regional 
action plan to maximise the benefit of these initiatives. 
 
The report summarised the key actions to prevent repossessions.  It was noted 
that the mortgage rescue scheme had had a very limited impact locally, 
however, some of the financial criteria that had restricted eligibility had been 
relaxed.  The Government had announced extra funding of £3.7m being paid to 
Local Authorities  to help support the development of plans to tackle the threat of 
repossessions.    In order to progress matters, there was general consensus 
amongst the County Homelessness Group that there were three key areas that 
needed to be addressed, namely improved communications, improved 
understanding and improved co-ordination.  The report outlined a number of 
actions proposed to deliver those aims. 
 
The recommendations to the Strategic Housing Board were outlined in the 
report. 
 
 Resolved: 
 
 That Members support for the Government initiatives be affirmed and 
 that the proposals contained in the sub-regional action plan be 
 endorsed  
 

19 Sub Regional Homelessness Strategy and Review of Ryedale’s Action Plan 
2009 
 
Members considered a report which updated them on progress made in the 
delivery of the North Yorkshire Homelessness Strategy 2008-12. 
 
The report outlined progress made on the key objectives contained within the 
Sub Regional Strategy, being:  Preventing Homelessness; Reducing the use of 
temporary accommodation and improving the standard of temporary 
accommodation used; tackling youth homelessness; providing housing support 
for homeless and vulnerable people, and increasing the supply of affordable 
housing. 
 
The report also outlined areas that needed to be addressed locally to meet the 
targets originally set in the Ryedale Action plan.  Specific progress had been 
made in certain areas, but the report also outlined areas where progress needed 

Page 2



Community Services  23 July 2009 

to be made. 
 
The report concluded that the development and implementation of a Sub 
Regional Homelessness Strategy had been successful in promoting joint 
working across the County, and had contributed to the achievement of key 
service objectives and improvements in service delivery through the sharing of 
skills, expertise and knowledge.  The specific areas of improvement had been 
identified and the Action Plan had been revised to achieve the objectives.   
 
 Resolved: 
 

(a) That progress made in the delivery of the strategy be noted; 
(b) That the key actions identified for 2009/10 be endorsed. 
 

20 Housing – Performance Report 
 
Members considered a report which informed them of the progress made 
against the Council’s agreed Housing policies. 
 
The report set out the strategic objectives, and progress made in individual 
areas. 
 
 Resolved: 
 
 That the report be endorsed. 
 

 Part B – Matters Referred to Council 

21. 
 

Mortgage Rescue Scheme 
 
Members considered a report that provided them with the main details of the 
Government’s Mortgage Rescue Scheme.   
 
The report outlined the background to the Scheme and developments that had 
taken place since the scheme went live in January 2009.  It went on to explain 
the main objectives of the Mortgage Rescue Scheme, the eligibility criteria and 
the application process. 
 
The report outlined the role of Yorkshire Housing, the Zone Agents, which was 
to confirm the property valuation and agree the terms of the rescue.   
 
One of the main obstacles for progressing the scheme was the level of debt 
secured against second or third charges, and whether lenders were willing to 
reduce or waive the charges.  Another obstacle was the cap on property values 
of £140000, as although this had increased, it was still problematic in Ryedale.  
Funding from the HCA was only available to cover 55% of the property price with 
the balance coming from the zone agent. 
 
A funding allocation of £200,000 had been made in the Capital Programme for 
this year.  Due to the general ongoing effect of the economic downturn it was 

Page 3



Community Services  23 July 2009 

only now that the demand for such assistance was starting to be felt.  It was 
clear this was going to continue beyond the end of the current year, and if the 
Council’s efforts to assist households were to have a meaningful impact it would 
be necessary to continue the scheme beyond the current financial year.  It was 
proposed that the in year allocation of £200,000 be spread over two years, ie 
09/10 and 2010/11.  The report also outlined the need for a funding allocation of 
£10,000 per annum to ensure the necessary staff resource to deal with 
applications for assistance.  In addition, access to specialist money advice had 
previously been provided through the Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB).  The CAB 
were unable to continue to provide this service due to a lack of funding, and the 
report recommended that £12,000 per annum be allocated from within the 
overall allocation of £200,000 to enable this service to continue. 
 
 Resolved: 
 
 That Council be recommended to approve:- 
 

(a) the principles of a local Mortgage Rescue Scheme designed to 
provide further support to the Government Mortgage Rescue 
Scheme. 

(b) That the overall funding allocation of £200,000 in the capital 
programme for 2009/10 be amended to cover the period 2009/10 
and 2010/11. 

(c) A funding allocation of £12,000 per year be made to secure the 
services of a specialist Money Advice Worker and 

(d) A funding allocation of £10,000 per year be made to ensure that 
there were the necessary staff resources available in order to deal 
with applications for assistance through the scheme. 

 
 

22 CO2 Performance and Targets 
 
Members considered a report, which informed them of the performance to date 
on National Indicator 185, the percentage carbon dioxide reduction from local 
authority operations. 
 
The Government had asked Local authorities to set a target for reducing CO2 
emissions, and stated that authorities should be looking to reduce emissions by 
a 2% minimum per year.  A joint reduction target for the North Yorkshire area 
was required to include NYCC, District Councils and National parks.  Some 
authorities had stated they expected to exceed the 2% minimum but others had 
indicated they may struggle to meet it.  The national parks were able to offer the 
largest percentage reductions whilst NYCC were offering the minimum.   
 
So far as Ryedale District Council were concerned, it was estimated that a 5% 
reduction target could be possible over a 2 year period, realised by the 
replacement boiler programme for Pickering and Derwent Pools and Ryedale 
House.  The report outlined the improvements that the Council had made to its 
buildings over the years, and warned that it would be increasingly difficult to 
realise further efficiencies without major refurbishment and investment.  Officers 

Page 4



Community Services  23 July 2009 

intended to carry out further work targeted at greening the vehicle fleet and 
aiming to reduce fleet mileage.  Results for NI 194 would be automatically 
computed from data entered into the same spreadsheet used for calculating NI 
185, utilising an incorporated add-on module. 
 
 
 
Councillor Woodward proposed, and Councillor Mrs Cowling seconded an 
amendment, which added the words “a minimum of” before 2% and 3%.  Upon 
being put to the vote, the amendment was carried. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the substantive motion was carried.  
 
 Resolved: 
 

That Council be recommended to approve the target for reductions 
in Carbon Dioxide emissions for Ryedale District Council be a 
minimum of 2% in 2009/10 and a minimum of 3% in 2010/2011 

 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 
 

PART A 

 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
  
HEAD OF SERVICE:  ECONOMY & HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT, PLANNING 
    JULIAN RUDD, PHIL LONG, GARY HOUSDEN 
 
SUBJECT:   PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT  

COUNCIL AIMS 1 - 4 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present for comment the performance and finance reports for Council Aims 1-4.  
 
1.2 To inform Members of progress made against the Council’s agreed aims and 

strategic objectives, as agreed by members in the Council Plan 2009/13. 
 

 
2.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members endorse the performance and finance report and 

agree any amendments to policy or further action required to improve performance. 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND & INTRODUCTION 
 
3.1 The Council adopted the Council Plan for 2009-13 in March 2009. The Financial 

Strategy was agreed in February 2009. The document attached at Annex A provides 
a progress report on the delivery of the Council Plan to the end of August 2009 in 
terms of actions delivered and performance levels achieved and a review of the 
financial implications to date.  

 
3.2 This report includes the first 4 aims which all fall within the terms of reference of this 

committee: 
 Aim 1 To meet housing need in the Ryedale District Council area; 
 Aim 2  To create the conditions for economic success; 
 Aim 3  To have a high quality, clean and sustainable environment; and 

Aim 4  To help residents to achieve a healthy weight by encouraging an active 
lifestyle, in communities where everyone feels welcome and safe.  

 
3.3 Performance against the fifth aim: To Transform the Council, will be reported to the 

Policy and Resources Committee in October 2009. 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 
 

4.0  PERFORMANCE REPORTING SCHEDULE 
 
4.1 The table below details the schedule of the performance reports to be presented to 

members throughout the year and links to the corporate planning framework. 
 

Schedule of Performance Reports 2009/10 

Date Committee Report 
Links to Corporate 
Planning Framework 

24 Sep 09 Community Services  
Council Plan Aims 1,2,3 & 4  
Performance and Finance 

Progress to end of August 
2009, informing budget 
process and service 
delivery plan revision 
 01 Oct 09 Policy & Resources 

Council Plan Aim 5  
Performance and Finance Report 

26 Nov 09 Community Services  
Council Plan Aim 1,2,3,4  
Performance and Finance 

Progress to end of October 
2009 

03 Dec 09 Policy & Resources 
Council Plan Aim 5  
Performance and Finance Report 

25 Mar 10 Community Services  
Council Plan Aim 1,2,3,4  
Performance and Finance 

Council Plan - revised 
delivery detail for 2010/11 

01 Apr 10 Policy & Resources 
Council Plan Aim 5  
Performance and Finance Report 

 
 
 
OFFICER CONTACTS: Please contact Heads of Service – Gary Housden, Julian Rudd 

and Phil Long if you require any further information on the 
contents of this report. The officers can be contacted at 
Ryedale House, Malton, YO17 7HH or on 01653 600666 or by 
email: firstname.lastname@ryedale.gov.uk 

 

Page 8



1

�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��

	
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	�
�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�!
�
�


"
�

#
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

��
��
�


��
��
�
��

�
�
�


�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
"
�

$
��
%
�
�
��

	
��
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�&
��
�'
��
��
�

��
"
�

(
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�



�
��





�

�
�
�
���
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
	�

�
�$
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


�
�



�



�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��


�

��
��
�


�	
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�$
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
� 



�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�$
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�
��
��


��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�#
��
�
�



�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�


	�
+&
�
),
,
-�

�
�$
�#
��
�
��
		

	
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

��
��

�
	�

�
�
�$
�(
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



2

�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

�
�
�


�
��
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
		
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
	�
��
�
��
�
�.
�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
$
/
/
0
12
��
�
 
�
�

	�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
3�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�




�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	4
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��


��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
0
��
��
�
 
�
��
�4
��
�
�
�	
�




�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�



�
 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�$
/
/
2
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
3�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
�

�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
��
�
�


�
��
�


�
��
��
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
��

 

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

	
	

�
�
��
��
�
 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
 
�
�'
	�
��
�
	�
��
� 

�
�
��
&
)	
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
 
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�!

�
�
��
�

�
	�
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�$
/
/
2
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
2
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
	�
 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
�5

�
'
�
�
�
�
�
�	



�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�$
/
�
/
4�
 

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
��
��
 
�
�

	�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�$
/
�
/
1�
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�6
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�7
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
7
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	

��
	�

�
��
�
�
3�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
�8
�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
9�


�
��

�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��

�


��
�
��
��
��
	�
�
�
�

	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


�

�
�	
�
�
�

�

��
�

��
�
�
�
	�

�
�


��
�
�
��
�
		

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��

	
��
�
�


��
��
�



�
�
�

�

�


��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
� 
�
�

��
�:
�
�$
/
/
0
12
�

�
��

�
�


��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�
��
��
$
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
 
�
��
�

	�
�
�

�
��


4�

�
�!
�
 
��
�
�;
�
�


��
�
�+
�
/
��
�

�
	-
��
�


�

�
�,
�
�
��
��
��
�
�+
0
��
�

�
	-
��
�;
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

	�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��


�
��

�
	�
�
�


��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�&
�
��

�
�
��
/
<
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�=
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
6�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�%
�
�'
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
		

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�	

�
�
	�
�
��

>
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�


�8

�
'
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
��
�
�
��
 

�
��


�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
$
<
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�*
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��


��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
?
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
,
�
�
�
��
��
�

	
��
		

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
'

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�	
��
�
�
�
	�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�


�
��
��
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
��
;
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


4�
!
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�


��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
$
��
�
 
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
	�

�
�
�

�
	�

�
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
 

�
�
�

�	
�8
��
�
�

�
�
�8
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
���
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
*
��
�
�
 
�
�'
��
�
�
	�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��


�
�

�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�*
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
8
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�6
	�
*
�
� 
�
�

�8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
@

�
�
��
�
�
��
<
/
/
�

�
��

�
�


��
�
	�
�
�
	�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�


��
�
��

�
	�

��
��
�
 

�
�
��
��
�
3�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�
��
�
��

�


��
�
��

�
�A
�
�
�
1A
�
��
�$
/
/
2
��
�%
�
�'
�

	�
 
�
��
��


��
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�
��
�
�


��
�



�
�
��
��
�
.
�

�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�)
�
*
�

�
��
��
		
��
%
�
�'
��
�
��
�
�
�&
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�)
�
�


�,
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
+&
�
),
,
-�

	
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�


��
�
�
�&
�
),
,
�
	
��
�
 
��
�
�
�	
�
�
3�
��
��
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�


�
	�
��
��
��:
��

	
��
�
�

�

�
�
��


��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
��
�

��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
 
�


��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�)
�
*
��
��
��
		
��
�

�
/
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�	
� 
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
�$
/
/
0
12
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
B
�
0
/
42
#
0
��
�


��
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
�,
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�)
�
�
�
	�
 

�
�
��
�	
�
��
�


��
�
�



�
�
��

&

�
��
��
�,
�
�

��
$
/
/
2
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
$
#
4/
#
$
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
$
#
�
<
�
��
�

Page 10



3

8
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�&
�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�7
�
�
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�



�

�
�
	�
	�
��
�
�
4�

 
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�



�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
� 

�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�



�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�	
��
�'
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
� �

Page 11



4

�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�

	�
��

�
�
	�
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� � �
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�

�

�

�
�

��
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�4
�

�
��
�



�
�
��

	
�
�
��


�*
�
�

�

�

�
	�
>
��
�
�	
4�
��
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
6	
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
��
��
�
��
�
�4
�	
�
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
9�
��
�
�8
�

��
��
�&
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
&
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�


�


��
��
�
�

�
 
��
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�7
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�B
�
�
��
��
��
#
��
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��


��
�
 
�
�

	�
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
	�

�

�

�
�

��
	�
���
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�	
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�
�	
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
�	
��
�
��
�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
'

�
�
��
���
�



�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
�
�
��
� 



�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�


��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	�
���
�

	
�
	
��
��
�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�


�



�
�


	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��


�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�<
/
�
�
�$
/
/
�
1/
0
��
�
�(
�
�
�
�$
/
/
0
1/
2
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
�+
�
�
��
�
��
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
�4
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
	�

�
-�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�


��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
�	
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�,
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
$
/
� 
�
��
��
 
�
�

�


�
�
�$
/
/
0
12
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
B
�
�
�
4�
�
/
4�
�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
�
0
4<
<
<
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�
�

�


��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�,
�
�

��
�
�


��
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�

,
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�


�

�
��
�
'

�
�
��


�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
+�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
*
>
-�
��
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
 
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

;
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�,
�
�

�C
��
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
<
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�<
��
�
 
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
�
�
4/
(
$
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

B
�
�
0
40
�
�
��
�

,
�&
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
�
���
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
>
�
�
	

�
	�
�
�


��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
��

�
��
�
	�
��
.
�

�
�


�

�
�

�
�
�


�
��
��
�
��




��
		
��
�

	
��
�
�


�

	�
2
��
��

	
��
		

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

	

�
�
�

	�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��

	
��
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�)
�
*
��
��
��
		
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
$
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
	�

�
�!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
	�
��
	



�
�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

	

�
�
4�
 

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�

&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��

� � � � � � � �

Page 12



5

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
���
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
,
�
�

&
�
��
�
 
 
��
��
�
�
��
'
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
� 
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
-
�

�
�
-
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�.
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
+
�
/�

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

&
��
+
,
,
�!
(
(
�
&
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

 
�
	
��
�

'
�
�
�
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
 
�2
%

�
�
�
3�
�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

�
�

+
�
�

,
4
�

�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
,
�
�!
(
(
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
 
�
��
�
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�'
�
�
�
��
%
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
5
/�
6
�

�
�
5
/�
6
�

�
�
�
�
��
�7
��
/+
-
��
�
�

�
�

2�
5
�
� 
)
�
��
��
%
�
3�
��
8
��
%
�

��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�
$
'
�
��
�%
�

�
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�


�
�
�
)
�
�/
��

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�9
�

.�
�
�
�

�
��
�
+
�
�

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

1
�
�!
(
(
�+
�
�
(
 
 
��
��
�
�
��
�
:
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�
�'
��
�


�
�
%
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
5
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
�

�
'
�

;
�

8
�
'
�

�
�9
�,
�
�"
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
��
%
��
'
�
�

1
�
)
�'
�

�
�
��
�
�&
�

�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 13



6



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
5
�
�

$
'
�
��
:
��
�
��
��
�)
'
��
'
�

�
� 
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
 
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
�
��
��

'
�
�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
��
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
+
/�
6
�

�
�
+
/�
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

1
�
�!
(
(
�+
�
�
(
 
 
��
��
�
�
��
�
:
�

�
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�
�'
��
�


�
�
%
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
5
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
�

�
'
�

;
�

8
�
'
�

�
�9
�,
�
�"
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
��
%
��
'
�
�

1
�
)
�'
�

�
�
��
�
�&
�

�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 14



7

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
���
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
+
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�1
�
�
�
��
%
��
�

�
��
%
�
�(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
9�
�
+
+
�

�

�
*
(
�
$
��
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
/�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�
 
��
� 
�
�
��
/�
�

�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
0
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�$

�
�
�
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�
�

�

�
�
	

�
%
��
�
�
��
0
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�$

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
/�
&
�
�
 
��
 
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�

�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
'
�
�
A�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
%
��
 
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
'

�
�
%
'
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�!
?
B
/�
&
�
%
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�)
�
�
�
�1
�
�
�
��
%
�

�
�
 
�B
�

)

�

 
��
��
�
�
��
%
��
�
%
�
��
%
/�
�

�

�
-
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
� 
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!
��
	
�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�"
	
�
�
�!
��
��
�
��
�
�
�!
��
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
5
�
@
�
�
��
�1
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�

�

!
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�	
�
��
%
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�)
'
��
�
��
&
;
�)
� 
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
/�
�

�
�
-
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�!
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
(
��
�
�
��
(
�!
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�)
*
�
$
+
+
,

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
-
�
�
�

�
��
@
:
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

B
�
�
 
��
%
��
�
�
�

�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
/�

�

�
��
�
:
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
�
� 
�
��
-
��
��
�

 
�
	
��
�'
�
�
�
��
%
��
�
��
�
/�
$
�
��
��
%

�
�
��
��
�

C
+
/5
5
�
�
��
��
�
�
/�
�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
?
�
�B
@
��
�
+
5
��
,
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
��
!
(
�!
�
�
 
'
�
� 
��
%
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
)
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
�9
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
!
��
 
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�'
�
��
�'
�
�
�)
�
�
� 
�)
��
'
��
�
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

 
�
	
��
�'
�
�
�
��
%
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�*
�
��
�
�
/�
2�
�
��
��

�
�
�

�
��
'
�

 
�@
�'
�

�
�
%
��
�
3/
��

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
+
�

!
?
B
�9
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
9

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�+
�
��
:
'
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
)
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
 
/�
&
�
)
��
�
�
��
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
%
��
�1
�
�
�
��
%
�!
�
�
 
�(
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�(
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
?

�
��
��
1
!
(
(
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
 
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

Page 15



8

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�'
�
��
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�

B
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
:
�
�
�
��
 
�&
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�

$
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�!
?
B
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
�
 
�

?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
-
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

Page 16



9

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
��
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
#

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

1
�
�+
�

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�)
'
��
'
��
?
�
��

�
8
�
�
�

 
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
��
�5
5
�

)
�

8
��
%
� 
�
�
�
�2
)
�
�
�!
�
��

4
�
3�

�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

+
�
�
/�
6
�

+
�
�
/�
6
�

+
�
�
/�
6
�

(
�
�

�
%
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

 
�
��

�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�5
+
� 
�
�
�
/�
�

�

(
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�

)
��
'
�)
��
'
��
�5
5
� 
�
�
�

��

%
�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
�
+
�

!
(
(
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
'
��
�
��
%
�

��
 
�
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
��
�
��
%
��
�
?
�
�

!
(
(
�!
�
�
 
/�
B
�%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
/�

�
5
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
�
/�
�
6
�

4
-
/�
�
6
�

&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�
�'
��
�


�
�
%
�
�

�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
�
+
�

$
��

�
��
�
8
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�

1
�
�
�
��
%
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

$
�
:
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
)
��
��
��

�
�

�
�
 
��
'
�
�
%
�
��
�
�
�
��
�9
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

*
�

�
'
�

�
�
�
�
�

+
�
/�
� 
�
�
�
�

�
�
/�
� 
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

&
��
+
�
4
2�
3�

$
�
�
8
��
�
%
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�D
�

6
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
%
�

��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
 
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
%
��
�
�'
�
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
�

��
)
��
�
�

%
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
��
�
%
E�
2�
3�
!
�
)
��
�
�

%
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
4
6
�

�
+
4
6
�

�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�



��
 
��
�
��
	
�
�

�'
�
�@
�
�

%
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
�
'
�
��
/�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
 
��
�
��
��
'
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�
��
�'
�
	
�(
�

�
��

�
�
/�
�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

)
��
'
�1
�
�
	
��
��
�
�F
�

�
�
�	
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
�
4
2�
�3
�

$
�
�
8
��
�
%
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�D
�

6
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
%
�

��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
 
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
��
%
��
�
�'
�
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
�

��
)
��
�
�

%
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
��
�
%
E�
2�
�3
�1
�%
'
��
�
�

%
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
6
�

�
�
�
6
�

�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�



��
 
��
�
��
	
�
�

�'
�
�@
�
�

%
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
	
�
'
�
��
/�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
 
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

 
�
��
�'
�
	
�(
�

�
��
�
�
/�

�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�)
��
'
�

1
�
�
	
��
��
�
�F
��
�
�	
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 17



1
0



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
-

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
,
-
�

&
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
�

2�
�
�
�
�
'
�
�3
�

�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

+
�
�

�
+
�
�

�

=
�
��
��
�
�

�
��

�
�)
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
��

�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

 
�
��
�'
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�)
��
��
	
�
�

>�
 
%
�
 
��
�
��
'
��
�G
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
5
�
�!
(
(
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
��
��

 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�2
&
<
�

��
�

�
� 
�
��
�
�
 
�	
�
��
�
8
��
�
�

!
(
(
��
��
)
��
'
��
�

%
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
/,
6
�

�
+
�
/,
6
�

#
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
/�
�
�
�*
(
�
(
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
 
�
��
�,
��
��
)
'
��
'
�

)
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
/�

$
�

%
�
��
��
�

�
 
�
�
�
��
'
��
�	
�
�

4
6
��
�
�
�
9+
�
��

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

%
�
��
��
��
�
�


�
 
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
6
/�
�

�
�
�

	
�

�
�
%
'
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

��

%
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
 
�
�
�
�	
�
�

4
6
��
�
�
�
9+
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

1
�
�!
(
(
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
'

�
�
%
'
�

(
 
�
��
�
��
�
 
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

�
,
�

+
,
5
�

�
5
4
�

�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 18



1
1

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
��

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
	
��
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�	
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
.�
��
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�'
�
� 
�)
��
'
��
�
!
�

�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
)
��
%
�

�
�
��
)
��
�
 
�*
�
�
	
�

�

�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
5
��
4
��
�
/�
�

�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
�
��
+
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	
�
�
�
��
'

�
�
%
'
�*
�
8
��
%
��
�
��
�

�

.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

/
��
�
�%
	
�
	
��
!
��

�
��
��
�
%
��
�
A�
�
�
��

�
�
%
��
�
A�
H
�
�
��
1
�
�
��

�
�
�
A�
H
�
�
��

!
�
��
�
�
A�
H
�
�
�
�

�
'
�

�
�
A�
�
'
�

	
�

�
��
�
 
��
��
:
��
�
�

�
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
�%
�
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
*
��
�
�?
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
��
��
�
)
��
%
��

�
��
��
%
��
�

�
�
��
��
A�
*
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
'
�
�
��
'
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
 
��
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�
8
��
%
��
'
�
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
��
�

)

�

 
/�
�

�� �
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�+
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�0
�
��
��
�
�

�$

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
��
�
�)
��
'
�!
�	

�

�
��
��
��
�'
�
�
�	
�
%
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
�
��
)
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
 
�%
��
�
��
'
�
�
�

��
��

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
��
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
��
)
'
�
�
��

�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
�

�

�
��
�

�
�
�
/�
�

�
�:
��

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�

�
A�
�'
�
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�)
�
��
�


�
�
�
��
�
 
�)
��
'
��
'
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�'
�
�?
��
�

��
��
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
/�
�

�� 1
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	
	
��
�

�!
�
 
�
�!
�
�
��
�
I�
��
�
�8
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
��
'
�
��

�
��
��
%
�

��

�
�
��
��
��
�
� 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
�'
�
�

�
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
/�
$
'
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�

�
�
�
'
�
 
��
�
��
�
8
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
��
�

�
�
��

�

�
��
��
%
/�
(
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
 
��
��
�'
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

&
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
)
�

�
�
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
�

�
'
�

�
�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
'
�
�

�
��
��
�
�/
��

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 19



1
2

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
� 
!
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
.�
��
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�'
�
� 
�)
��
'
��
�
!
�

�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
)
��
%
�

�
�
��
)
��
�
 
�*
�
�
	
�

�

�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
5
��
4
��
�
/�
�

�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

#

�
	
��
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

	
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�	
�
�	
��
�
�/
	
�
��
�
�
�
�0
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�*
�

�
%
�
%
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
*
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
�

0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
'
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
5
��
4
��
�
/�
$
�
�	
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
	
�
�B
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
5
��
�
��
�
/�
�

�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

-

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
 
��
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
�
��
'
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
�
�!



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
?
�
�
�
�
��
'
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
(
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�)
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
�

)
��
'
��
:
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�+
�
��
�
��
��
��
%
��
�
6
��
��

	
�
 
%
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
/�
�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 20



1
3

�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�


�
��
��




��
�
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�




�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

8
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
D
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��


�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��

��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�D
��

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
 
�
	
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
���

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
"
�

�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
"
�

<
��
%
�
�
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�

	�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
		
"
�

0
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��	
'

�
�	
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
���
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

$
�#
��
��
�
�



�
�
�

��
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
	

��
	�
��
��

�


�
	�
�

�
�4
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
�


��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�)
�
*
��
�
��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

$
�#
�$
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�

��
��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

$
�#
�#
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
��

��
 
�
	�

$
�#
�#
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
��

��
 
�
	�

$
�(
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��
	�

$
�(
�$
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�.
�

�
�
��
�
�
�	
'

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�

$
�(
�#
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
���
�
�
�	
�

$
�(
�(
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
���
�
�
�	
��
��
	'

�
�	
��
�
��
�

��
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
�

$
�(
��
�8
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
�

Page 21



1
4

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

8
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
D
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
��

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��

�

�
�
��
G
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
 
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
1	
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
�4
��
��
��
�
�
�
'

�
�
�?
��

�
�
�
��
�+
2
��
H
��
��
 
��
-4
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�?
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
+�
�
H
-�
�
�


�

��
�
�
'
�
�
 
��


�
�
�

�


�
	�
��
�
+(
�
H
-�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�	
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
��


�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
	�
+�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��


�
��
	4
�
�

�
�
�
�


�
�
�
	�

��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	4
��

�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
	�
�
�
	-
��
�


��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	
�
�

�
�
4�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
4�
 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
	�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�

	
��
��
�



�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��

�
'
	�
 

�
�
�&
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�I
�
�'
��
�
�
 
�
�
�
�4
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
 
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�


�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�


�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��

�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��

�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�	
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�+
$
/
H
-�
�
�


��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
>
��
 
��
�

�
�

�
?
�
4�
�
�
�
'

�
�
�?
��

�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�'
�
�
 
��


�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�

	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
�	
��
��
��
�

�
�	
��
�


��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
�

	�
 
�
�
��
�
�

�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��

��
��
�	
��

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
� 
�
�

�
+�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
)�
*
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
I
�
�'
	�

�
�
�
*
�
� 
�
�

C�
�


�
�
��
3�
��
	-
�
�
�


�
��
�
.
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
	

�
�
		
�

�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


9�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�

	�
��
.
�

�
�


��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�


�	
�
�
�
��

�
	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�I
�
�'
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


�


�
�
�	

�
�
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
�*
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�


� 
�
�'
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
�
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�8

�
'
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
 

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
�


�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	4
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
� 

�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
��
�	
�
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�'
��
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
 
��
4�
�
�


��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
�

�
3�
��
�B
�
�2
�
�
��
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
 
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�

!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
 

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�B
�
/
/
'�
��
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
	�

�
�
��
��

8

�
'
�
�

�
�
��
�:
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
	4
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
� 

�
�
�F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�!
�
��
�
�
4�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
�4
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
&�
�
�
�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�


� 

�
�
�

I
�
�'
	�

�
�
�*
�
� 
�
�

��
�	
�
�	
�
�
'
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
��

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
	4
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
�	
�
��
�
�4
��
�


�	
�
�
'
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
�


�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
��
	�
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
�!
I
�
�
��

�
�
 
�
�
	�
�

�
	�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�



�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�


�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
��

	
�	
�

�
�F
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
	�
�	
��
�

� �
�
�


�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�'
��
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
�
�
�

	�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
+�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�?
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
1�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
��
-�
��
�
�

	
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

	
�
��
�

��
�
�

	�
4�
��
��
 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	�
	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
� �

Page 22



1
5

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�D
��

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
���
�
'
�
C�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
4�
 
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�	
'

�
��


� 
�
�'
4�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
��
�


���
 
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
�

 
�
�
�
	�

�
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�$
/
1$
�
H
���
		
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�



�3
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�


��
�
�


�
��
4�
 

�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��



	
��
�
��
	�
���
�

	
��
�


�
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
	�
��
�

	�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�
�
�


�


�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�




�


��
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
� 

�
�
��

�
'
	�
��
��
�
�
�I
�
�'
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

,
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
3�
�
	�
�
��
�
���
�
��
	�
�
�
�
���
�
	�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�	



�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

���
�
��
�

��
��
��

�
��

��
4�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	

��
	'

�
�	
�
	
	�
�
	�
+

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�


��
�
�
�
��
��
-�
�
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

	
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
��
��
���
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
�	
'

�
�	
��
��
��
��
��
 
�
�'
�
�	
��
��
�

	
�
	
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�

	�
�


��
�
�


�
��
�7
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�


�&
'

�
�	
�

8
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
4�
��


��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
4�
 
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�'
��
�	
'

�
�	
�
	
	�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
��
�
���
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
��




��
		
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
��
�


� 
�
�'
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
,
��
�


��
�
�

	
��
��


�	
�
�

�
���
�
�


��
�

	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	�
�
�	
�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�



�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�


��

� ;
�
���
�



�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�


�
��
E
�
3�
��

�
�
�#
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
��

	
�
�

�
�
��
�


�


�
�
�	

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
���
��
���
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�

 
�
�
�
���
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��

�
	�
��
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�




�
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
3�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
4�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

�
�


��
�

�



�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
��

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�� 
�
�'
	�
 

�
�
�;
�
	

�
�
		
�)

�
'
��
�
��
��
�



�
��


�

��
��
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�


�
��
��

�
��
�

�
	�
��

Page 23



1
6

� 

�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
(

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�'
�	
��
��
�
�0
!
�
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
	
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

@
�
��
�

�
'
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

�
%
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�/
�2
)
�
�
�!
�
��

,
�
3�

�
�
�
4
��
�
�

+
/�
�
6
�

�
/�
-
6
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
E�
!
�
�
�
��



�
�
)
��
 
%
�
�(
�
�
�
�
��

<
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
G
�
�

�
��
�
�
-
��

�

?
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
E�
!
�
�
�
��



�
�
)
��
 
%
�
�(
�
�
�
�
��

<
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
G
�
�

�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
4
�
�

6
��
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��
'
�
)
��
%
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
%

�
)
�'
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

��

�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�
@
�
��

�

�
�
�
�

F
��
�
%
�
��
��

�
��
�
��

�

��
�
�

&
�
�
�?
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
4
+
�

!
(
(
�

&
�
)
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
%
��
�

�
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�

�
+
�
A�
�
�
��
�
�
J�
�

+
-
�

�
K
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

��

�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�
@
�
��

�

�
�
�
�

F
��
�
%
�
��
��

�
��
�
��

�

��
�
�

&
�
�
�?
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

@
�
�!
(
(
�

5
-
�

0

�
)
��
'
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��

�

�
�
�
-
��
4
�

+
4
4
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

<
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
-
9�
4
��

�

!
(
(
��
�
 
��
�
��

/
�$
'
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�"
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
%
�

 
��
��

�
�
��
)
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
%
�D
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

'
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�	
�
�

?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

@
�
�!
(
(
�

5
4
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�2
C
�
�
3�

�
�
�
4
��
�
�

C
+
�
5
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
 
��

�

8
�
��
�
%
�

�
�
 
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

��
�

�
�
�
��

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
 
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
�G
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
�

�
�
��
��
'
�
�*
�
�

�
�F
�

�
�
�
�
��
$
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
A�
�
�
��
%
��
�
�

�
 
 
��
��
�
�
��
C
�
�
+
8
��

�
�
�

;
�

8
�
'
�

�
�B
�

)

�

 
/�
�

!
(
(
��
�
 
��
�
��

�
�
)
�
��
��
%
�


�
�
�
��
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

8
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�D
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
���
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��

��
�
�	
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�

Page 24



1
7



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
2

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
	
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

B
�
�-
�

6
��
��
�
��
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�'
�
��
��
8
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

8
�
��
��
)
�
�
��
�
 
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
%
�
�
E�
@
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
2)

�
�
�!
�
��

-
,
	
3�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

B
�

�

�

�
!
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
��

�

-
,
	
�2
!
�
��
-
,
	
3�
)
��
��
	
�
�


�
�
��
)
�
 
��
�
��
�'
�
�!
?
B
�

�
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��

�

8
�
��

��
)
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
%
�
�
��
�
��
%

�
�
 
/�

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

&
��
+
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

)
��
'
�!
(
�

�
%
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

4
-
6
�

�
�
�
6
�

�
��

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
4
,
�

!
(
(
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
A�
)
�
�8
��
%
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
%
/�
�B
�%
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
�
��
�F
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
/�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
,
�
�
4
�

�
�
,
�
�
4
�

�

&
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
%
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
%
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
	
�
�
�
�
�2
�
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

Page 25



1
8

�
��

� 
��
$�
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

8
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�D
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�!
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�3
� 
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
+
�

!
?
B
�9
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
9

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�+
�
��
:
'
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
)
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
/�

&
�
)
��
�
�
��
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
'
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
�
�

!
?
B
�9
�B
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
%
�?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
?
�
?
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
,
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
�
� 
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
5
�

!
?
B
�9
�1
�
��

�
��
�
�?
�
?
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
��
��
 
�
�
��

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
,
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
�
� 
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�!
�	
��
/
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�
�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
+
�
*
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
	
�

�
��
�
 
�

�
��
8
�
'
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�(
�

�
��
�
�
A�
)
��
'
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
+
�*
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�C
�
/,
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
 
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�'
�
	
/�
�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
*
�
��
�
�
�$
�
)
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

C
+
4
4
8
��

�
�
�;
�B
�

)

�

 
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�G
�
��
8
�)
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�*
�

�
'
��
�
A�
)
��
'
��
��
�

�
'
�

�
C
+
�
,
8
��
��
�
?
�
�

��
�
 
��
%
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
)
� 
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��

�
 
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
 
��
�
�
 
��
%
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
%
'
��
�

�
�
��
?
�
A�
;
B
��
�
 
��
�

�
�
�

�
/�
�

(
��

�
>�

�
	
�
�
�
��
'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
)
�

 
�
��
�
�
 
��
%
��
��
�'
�
�

(
-
�
�<

�
�
	
��
�
%
�B
��
� 
�
�>
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�/
�&
;
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
 
�C
�
�
��
�
��
 
 
��
�
��
'
�
�

��
:
��
��
�
%
��
�
�
�

�	
�
��
�
�
��
��

C
�
�
�
8
/�
?
�
�
�%
�
�)
�

8
��
�
��

�
%

�
�
�
��
%
A�
��
�
 
�
 
�	
�
�&
;
�
�
��
�
 
�

�
?
�
/�
��
��
�
�'
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
'
�
��
�

�
�
�C
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
+
�
/�
(
��
�

�
'
�

�
C
+
�
��
�
)
�

 
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

*
�
��
�
�
��
�
)
�
��
�
�
�

�
�)
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�	
�
�&
;
�
�
��

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 26



1
9

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
��
�	
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
5
�
�
�
%
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
8
�

�
�
%
��
�
 
�



�

8
	
�
�
�
�

�
� 
�
�

�

&
;
�
�
�'
�
�
�
��
%

�
�
 
��
�
�
 
��
%
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
 
�)
��
'
��
'
�
�

�
�
G
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
 
��
�

�
�'
�
��
��
8
�

�
�
%
�(
+
4
�
�#
��
�
�
�!
�
�
�
�

�

�
��
��
��
�%
�
�
��
�
�
'
�
�
�
/�
$
'
��
�)
��
��

�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
%
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
8
�

�
�
%
��
�
 
�'
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�/
��
'
�

�
'
�1
�
�
�
�
��

�
>�
�
��
�
��


*
�
�'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
�
 
�	
�
��
�
�
)
��
�
%
�
��
%
/�
B
�
�
 
��
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
� 
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
8
�

�
�
%
��
�
 
�

*
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�
%
'
��
�'

�
�
%
'
�

%
�
�
%

�
�
'
��
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 27



2
0

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�D
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
4

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
�
+
�

$
��

�
��
�
8
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�

1
�
�
�
��
%
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

$
�
:
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
)
��
��
��

�
�

�
�
 
��
'
�
�
%
�
��
�
�
�
��
�9
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

*
�

�
'
�

�
�
�
�
�

+
�
/�
� 
�
�
�
�

�
�
/�
� 
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

&
��
+
,
+
�

=
�
�

�
��
�@
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�

2)
�

8
��
%
9�
%
�
3�
2�
��

�
�
�'
�

��
%
��
�
��
�%
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
3�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

��

�
H
�

8
�F
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
:
�
�
�
��
 
�(
�
%
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
,
�
�

H
�

8
��
%
��
%
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
)
�

8
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

H
�

8
��
%
��
%
�
�8
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
E�

�
A�
�
�
�2
�
6
A�
)
'
��
'
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
+
�
/�
6
�


�
%
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�+
�
/�
6
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
3/
�(
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
-
-
�

*
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
��
��
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�

�

�
�
�2
(
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
'
�
��

(
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�1
�
�

�
�F
�

@
�

�
��
%
�
�9
�=
&
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

C
5
�
,
/�
�
�

�
C
5
�
,
/�
�
�

-
/4
6
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
�
�
�

$
'
�
��
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
'
�
�
%
�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�)
'
��
'
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
I�
1
<
��
$
<
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
��
��
'
�
�

�
�
�

/
2�
�

�
+
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
3�

*
�

�
'
�

�
�
�
�
�

,
�
4
/�
�

�
+
�
,
�
/�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
��
� 
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
�?
H
�
�)
�
	
�
��
�
�

1
�
<
=
?
��
�
 
��
�
� 
�

�
�
�
 
�

	
�
�?
H
�
��

�
�
��
'
�
��
1
<
@
�

2�
��
%
��
�1
�
�
�
��
%
�<
�
�
�
��
��

@
:
�

�
�
�3
��

�

��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

Page 28



2
1



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
5

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
!
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
-
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�/
��

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
%
�
 
�+
�
9-
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�

+
�
9,
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

G
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

5
��

�
'
�%
'
�

�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
A�

"
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�F
��
8
��
��
�

�
:
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�.
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 29



2
2

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�D
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
 
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	
�
	
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
�!
��
��
�
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
 
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
'

�
�
%
'
��
?
�
�

)
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
��
�
�

�
)
�

8
��
%
�)
��
'
�<
�
�
��
�
�
�
�!
��
8
A�

��
�
��
 
��
%
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
 
�
��
�1
�
�
�
�
�2
��
�	
�
�


�
��
�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	

�

�
�
�
3/
��
�
��
 
 
��
��
�
��
�
�%

�
�
��
��
�

�

��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
 
��
�
�
8
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

)
'
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
/�
;
�

8
�
'
�

�
�B
�

)

�

 
A�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�)
��
'
��
?
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
%
��
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
/�
�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

�

�
�
	
��
�
��
��
�
	
�
��
��
	
��
�
6
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
!
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
,
�
@
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
%
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
%
�
�

�

�
�
�
 
�
��
�<
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
8
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
��
�
 
��
�
�	
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
��

�
�
	
�

�
��
�
 
��
�
�
 
�
��
�@
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
8
��
��
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
��
�
��
�
��

�

��
�
��

�
��

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
/�

�
@
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
%
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
A�
��
�
��
 
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�8
�
�
�
8
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

��
�
8
��
�
�
�
��
>�
	
��
�
�
8
�

�
�)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
/�
�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

#

�
�
	
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
-
�
?
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
>�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�%

�
)
�'
��
��

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

(
�C
+
�
�
8
�%

�
�
��
�
�
'
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
 
��

�
 
��
�
�

�
�
��

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
(
�

�
��
�
�
+
�
/�
C
5
�
A4
�
5
�

'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
)
�

 
�
�+
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
/�
=
�
��
�

5
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
>�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�

/
��

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 30



2
3

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

-

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�0
!
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�=
?
��
�
+
5
�

�
�
�

@
�
�
��
�
��
�
%
�!
�
�

�
��
%
��
�
 
�?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

@
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
9�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
�	
�
�1
�
��

�
>�
�
��

=
��
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
 
��
��
.�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
?
�
�=
?
��
�
+
5
�

+
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�

$
'
�
��
8
��
��
��
�
 
�G
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�)
�
�
��
��
�
�
 
�*
�
�
�5
+
�

�
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
/�
(
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�'
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
 
�
/�
$
'
��
�

��
��

�

�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
�%
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

��
'
�
��
�

�
�

�
��
��

�
��
��
%
�

�
��
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
�!
�
�

�
��
%
��
�
 
�?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

	
�
�'
��
��
)
'
��
'
��

�
��
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
� 

�
��
��
�

�

/�
�

�

�
-
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
?
�
�=
?
��
�
+
5
�

+
,
�

�

�
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

$
'
�
�!
�
�

�
��
%
�L
�
�
�
�)
��
��
	
�
�%
�
��
%
��
��
�
��
'
��
�)
�
�
8
�)
��
'
��
�
�

��
�

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
 
�
'
�
)
��
�

�
�
��
��
��



�
�
%
�
 
/�
$
'
�
�!
�
�

�
��
%
�

L
�
�
�
��

�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
%
��
��
�
� 
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
�

�
%
��
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�

�
��
%
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
/�
(
��
�
�
�
��
�
8
��
��
�	

�
8
�

�

'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
%
�
%
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
)
��
'
��
'
�
��
 
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
%
��

�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
 
��
�
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
 
��
%
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�

�
-
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

(

�
7
�
!
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
<
��
�
+
5
��
4
�
�
�
�
��
)
�	
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�F
�)
'
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
)
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

!
�
�
8
��
%
��
��
�
�>
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�)
�

8
��
%
��
�
��
�
'
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
%
�
/�
�

�
�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

�
?
�
��
<
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
)
�F
� 
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
 
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�

)
��
'
��
�
�

	
�

�
�
%
'
�

�

�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
�
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��

�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
� 
�
��
�
�

�
��
��

�

�
�
 
��
�

�
��
�
/�
$
�
�
�
�

�

�
��



�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
 
�
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�)
��
'
��
�
�

	
�

�
�
%
'
�<
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
%
�

��
��
'
�
��
�
��

�
�
/�
�

�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

�
?
�
��
<
��
�
+
5
�+
+
�
(
 
�
�
��


!
=
@
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�



!
=
@
��
�
��
9�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
A�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
	
��
�
'
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
>�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
�&
;
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�%

�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

Page 31



2
4

�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
4�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��

8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

2
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
	�
�
�

	�
�
��
��
���
�


�

��
"
�

�
/
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
E
$
���
�
�
�	
��
�


�
�

�
�
"
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
"
�

�
$
��
%
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

	
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�


�
	
�


�
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
	"
�

�
#
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
�

	�
��
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�


�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��

�
�


"
�

�
(
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�

�
��
�



�
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

#
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
��

#
��
�$
��
�


�
��

�
�
�
�
�'

�
�
	�
�
��
��
	



�
�
��
 
�
	�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�

#
��
�#
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
��


�
� 
�
	�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�!
I
�
�
�

��
�


�

��
�	

�
�
	�

#
��
�(
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�	
��
E
$
��
�


�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�

#
��
��
��
�
	

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

#
�<
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��



�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��

��
��
�

�
�
	�

#
�<
�$
��
�
��
�
�



�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�


��

	
'
��
��
�
	�

#
�<
�#
�*
��
�


��
�


�8
:�
�
��
�
�

�
 
��

	
'
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

#
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�

�
��

�
�


��

�
�

.
�
�
�

��
��
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�



�
�

#
��
�$
�:
�
�
��
��


�	
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
		
�

#
��
�#
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�	
��
��
��
��
���

�



�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
�

 
�
�'
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
 
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

Page 32



2
5

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	 �

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�


�
��
��
�
���
�
��
�
��
�
��
		
��
�
 
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
$
/
��
�
��
�
��
$
$
�
'
�
��
��
��
	



�
�
��
 
�
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
	�
�
��
�
�


�


��
�
�
�$
/
$
/
��
/
H
�

��
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�#
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
��
#
��
H
��
:�
��





�

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��B
#
/
5
� 

�
��
�
�



��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�&
),
�

 
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
��





�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��



�
	�
�8
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�.
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
$
/
/
2
1�
/
�
�



�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�

	�
��
�
�
��
&
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
	�
�+
�
#
H
-�
�
�


��
�
��
��

�
�
�+
<
(
H
-�
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�


4�
��
�

�
�
�#
�

��
�


�(
��
�J
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
	�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
��
�
�&
8
,
�
&
7
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�




	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�	
��
�


��

�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
�	
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
�

��
��
�
�

�
	�
��
�
	

	�
�
�
��
 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
���
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��



�
��


��
�
��

,
%
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�8
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�

�
	

��
��
�
��
�
��
	�

�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
	�


�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�

,
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


��
��

�
�
	�
��
��
�


�
��
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
$
/
/
2
1�
/
��
	�


�
��

�
�


�

�
��
��
��
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
/
$
��
�


�
��

�
�
�

��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
��
��
�
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
��
(
H
��
�
��
$
/
/
2
1$
/
/
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
$
H
��
�
��
$
/
/
2
1�
/
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
#
H
�

��
��
$
/
�
/
1�
�
��
8
��
�
�
�


�:
�

�

�
�

��
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�	
�

�
��
�


�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�

�
�
�	
��
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�


�
��
�8
�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�


�
��
�

�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�


�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
�'
��
�


�

�
�
��
�
�'
�	
�
�
��
��
� 

�
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�


��
�
��
��
� 

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

	
	

�
�

�
�
��
��
��
		
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
		
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�


�
��
�8
�
�
��

 

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
4�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

	
��

�
�
�
�

�
���
�
�
��

�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�8
��
�
�
��
�
�G
�

�
��
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
C�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
�
��

��
��
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

���
�
�
��
�
��
4�
 
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	�
��*
��
�
��

�

�

�
�

��
	�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
���

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�&
�
�
��
��
��
��

	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
��
 
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�


	�
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
	



�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
�

��
��
�
��

�
�
	�

�
� 

�
��
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�

� � � � � � � �

Page 33



2
6

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
��

8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

8
��
�
��
		
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�


�
�

�
��
�

	
�


�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

	
��
�

.
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�'
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
� 
�
	�
	�
�
�

�

��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�7
&
�
��
�
��
�
�

@
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�
	�
K�

�
�
�

�
�
��


��
�


�

�
�
�
�
	�
��
��


��
�

�



�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�'
�

�
�
�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��

	
	�
�
	L
��
�E
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	
��
��
 
�
C�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
4�
�

�	
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
�
���
��
��
	

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
	�


�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
		
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
		
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
��
3�
��
��
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�

	�
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�&
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�


	�
��
���
�


��
�


�

�

��
��
�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�
��
:�
��





�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�

�
�
�
	
��
�

�
�
�


	
��
		
�


� 

�
�
�7
&
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
���
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
��
�

�
�


��
��

��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�

� �,
��
�
3�
��
�

�
��
��
��
 
�
�'
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�F
�
��

�,
�
�
�
��
�*
��
�


��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
C�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�8
��
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
��
8
��


�
��


�

�
�$
/
/
�
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

��
 
�

��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

	
	�
�


��
7
*
�
,
��
�



�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��



�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
1�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�

	'
��
�


��
�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
6	
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
E
��

�
�
�	
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
		
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�*
��
�


��
�


�%
�
��
��
F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
;

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
��

�
��
	�
�
'
	�
��
��
�
�

	�
4�
�
�


�
��

	
�
��
�


��
�
�
	�
�



�
��
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
�



�
�
4�
��
�


�

��

�
�
�
�
4�
��
�
	�
�
���
��
	

�
�
��
�


��
�
	�
��
�

�
�	
�
��
��
��
)�
�
'

�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�



�
�
4�
��
�
�

��
��
�;

�
��
��
�
	



�
�	
��
�
 
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�



�
�
��
�


� 
�
��
��

��
�

	
��
�

�
�
4�
��
�
�

��
��
�
	�
�
�
	

�

�

�

�
	�
�
�


��
�
�

�

��
��
��
��
�


��

	
'�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�,
��
�
�


	
��

�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
� 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
.
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
M�

�
�
7
�
�
�
�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

��
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
�)
�
�


��
��

�
�
�
�
�,
��
��
2
2
�
�

�
�
�
�
C�
�
�
��
��
��
�


��
		

	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�

�
�

�	
��
��


�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�&
�
��
�
��
�%
�
��
��
F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
8
��
�
��
�


��
		
�
�

�
��


�

�
�

�
	�
�
�


�
��
��
�
�*
��
�


��
�


�%
�
��
��

F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

	
��
�

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�

	
��

�
��

	
��
�
�
��
�


�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
���
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
		
��

� 8
��
�
��
		
��
�
 
�
�

	�
!
:�
�
0
0
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

	
��
�	
�
��
�
'

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�8
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
	

	�
 

�
�
�!
I
�
�
��
�


��
��
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��

	
��

�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
�


�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�3
�

�
��
)�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�:
�
�
�
��
	�
8
��
�

��
�+
)�
):
8
-�
��
�

	
� 

�
��
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


	
��

�
��
�
��
�
'


�
 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

	
�
�


�
��
��
�
��
	�
�8
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
	�
�
	
�B
�
/
5
�	
�
�
��


��
�
� 
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
:�
��





�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��

�
�	
�
��
�

�
�
��
:7
8
��
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�3
�

�
��
!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�)
�
�


�
�	
�

�
�8
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
	�
�
��
��
	�

��
��
�
 
	M
�

•
 
;
�

�


��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�


��
��

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

•
 
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
4�
	�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
�	
��
�


�	
��
'�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
��
�
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
� 

�
��
��
'�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
	�
		

�
�
	�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
�E
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�


�A
�
�
�
�
��
�$
/
�
/
� 
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
!
I
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
9�



	
��
		
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


��
��
��

�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�	
4�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
��
�


�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

•
 
�
�
�

��
��

�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�!
:�
�
0
�
1!
:�
0
<
�+
),
,
��
�
��
�
�	
-�
�
�


�!
:�
0
0
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
 

�
�
�

�



�



�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
��
7
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
���
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
�
�
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

��

Page 34



2
7

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��

�
�


�

�
��
�
�
�=
	�
��


6�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
�)
�
��
��
8
��
�
�	
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
�

�

��
��
�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
4�



�
�
��

�
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�
��
��
 
�
	�
�
�


� 

�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�

8
�
�

�

�
	�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�)
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
*
��
�
�
 
�
�'
� 

�
��
	�
�
'�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
1�
��
�
		

�
��
��
�
��
�

�

�
	�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�

��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
��
�4
��
�
�



��
��
�
	�
	�
�
3�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��

	
'
��
�


��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
	

�
�
�
��


��
�
�


	�
�
�
�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
��
��
7
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��

�
��
 
�
�

�
�

�	

�
�
	�
 
�
�
��
��
�
		

�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
'�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�


��
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
�

	�


��
�


��
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
��
��

��
 
C�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

� :�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�'
�
��
)�
�
�*
��


�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
��


�
��
4�
��
�
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�*
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�8
��
��
 

�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
C�
�
C

�
��
��
�
�'
�
��
�
�


��
�



�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
�&
��
�
��
�

�
�*
��
�


��

	
'
�,
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
4�

	
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�


�
��


��
�


��
�
�
��

�
�
��


�
��
�
�
�
��

	
��
��
�
��
�


�


�
�!
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
��
�
�
�&
�*
��
�,
��
 

�
��
�
�



�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

	

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��

	
'
��
��
�
	�
�
�


��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�


�	
�
�
	

�

��
��
	�
	�
�
��
�


�
�
��
�


��
 
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��

�
��
�
��
	�
��

	
'
��

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�


��
�
�
�7
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
,
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
�'
�
�
 
�
�*
��
�


��

	
'
��
��
�
	�
�
�


� 
�
�
��
��
�
�
�7
�,
��
�
�
	�
�
�
3�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�


	�
�
��
��
�
�


��

	
'
4�

��
�
�)
�
��
��
8
��
�
�

�
�
�,
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
��
	�


��
�
��

	
	

�
�
��

,
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
��
�
�


��
�



�
�
��
��
�
.
�

�
�


��
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�)
��
�*
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	
	

�
�
�


��
�


��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�,
��
�
3�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�
�

�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��

��
�
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�*
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
8
�
��
�
�
��
�


�


�

�
�A
�
��
�$
/
/
2
��
�


��
��
��
<
/
/
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�


��
��
�
�

�
��
��
	�
�


��
�

�


��
�
��

�
	�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
���
�
�
��
	�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�6
	�
*
�
� 
�
�

�8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


��

��

	
��
�
�

�

�
�
��


��
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�F
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
�E
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
� �

�

Page 35



2
8

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
���
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� 8
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
���
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
.
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��

��
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
	�
��
�
�
'

�
�
�#
2
��
�
��
�
��
$
/
�
��

	
��

�
�	
��
!
�
 
�

�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
C�
	�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
4�


�
��
��
�
�


�

�
��
�
�
3�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
	 
�
�
�

�
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
		
�	
��
�


�
�

	�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�<
��
H
��
�
�(
��
H
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
'�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
3�

�
��
�
��
�
�


�


��
�
��
��


�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�!
�
�

�
�
�
��8
�
�'
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�

��
�
��
�
C�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�

�

��
��


��
�
�
�	
 
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

� �
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�,

�
�J
�
�
�

��
�F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
,
��
�
�+
,
J
F
,
-�

�
�F
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
.
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��

��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
 
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


�	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
�,
J
F
,
��
�
�

�
��
�


�
��
�
��
��
�
� 



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
	�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
��
�

�
�

	
� 

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�,
J
F
,
� 

�
��

�
��
�


�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��


��
��
�
�


�
�
��
	�
�,
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
	
��
�
��
�
�

��
 
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
�
	�
��
�


��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��

�
�


�

�
�

�	
�;

�



�
�
�	

�
�
�,
��

�
�
�8
��
�
��
�,
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�

�
	�
��
��
�
�
�'
�

	�
��
��
=	
�
�
	

�

�

��
6�
��
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�


�
.
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
	�

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
4�
��
�
��
�

�
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

	
�


��
�


��
��
��
��
�


��

*
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
	�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	

�

��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	

��
	�

	
��
�
.
�

�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


� 

�
�
�!
I
�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
�,
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�)
�
��
��
,
��
�
�,
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
+!
�:
��
�
2
�
-�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�6
	�
�
�
��
C�
�
�


�


��
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
�F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
E
��

�
�
��
+�
F
E
-�
�
�
	�
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
��

	
�
�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
F
E
��
�
��
�
�
�
�!
I
�
�
�

�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
�

	�
�
��
�
��
�


�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��

� � � � �

Page 36



2
9

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
8

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�

$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�

$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
�
+
�

�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�)
�
�
��
�

9�
8
%
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�2
)
�
�
�

!
�
��
-
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
4
5
8
%
�'
'
�

�
-
-
8
%
�'
'
�

�
4
5
8
%
�'
'
�

"
�
�
:
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

%
�

 
�
�
�)
�
�
��
A�

'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�)
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
%
�
/�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
� 
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�/
��

�

��
�

�
�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
5
�

!
(
(
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
%
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��

)
�
�
��
��
�
�
 
��
��
��
 
�

2�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�/
��
�
�
��

�

�
 
�

�
�
:
��
G
�
�

�
�

3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

,
�
/�
4
6
�

,
�
/�
�
6
�

,
�
/�
4
6
�

�
+
�
��
�
�

��
�
�+
�
�)
��
��
�
�
��

	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

��
�
�
��
(
�
%
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
�
�

!
(
(
�

6
��
��
'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
�)
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
A�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
�

�
�
 
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
�

2�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�/
��
�
�
��

�

�
 
�

�
�
:
��
G
�
�

�
�

3
�

�
+
�

�
�
�
�
�+
�
�

,
�
/-
�
6
�

�
�
/4
�
6
�

,
5
/+
�
6
�

�
��

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
�"
9
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
�
,
�

!
(
(
�

�
=
�
�

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�!
(
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
/�
�(
��

��
�
�

�
�
:
��

��
�
��
��

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

&
�(
�

�
&
�(
�

?
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
/�
�
�
�
�
9�
�
��
�
�

	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
9�

��
 
��
�
��

�
��
�6

��
'
�
�
%
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

/
�B
�

�
��


�
�
�
��
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�

��
�.
�
�
�
��
�
+
�
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
-
�

!
(
(
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
=
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�!
(
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
 
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
@
B
�
(
/�

?
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
4
�)
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�

�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 37



3
0

�
��

�%
�,
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

�

�
:
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	
�
�(
�
;
��
	
�(
(
;

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
+
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
 
 
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�)
'
�
�
�

�
�
'
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
+
�
��
�
+
+
�

�

#
�
'
��
��
��
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
+
�
��
�
+
+
/�
&
�
)
��
�
'
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
:
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
:
��
��
�
%
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
'
�
�
/�
1
�
)
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
'
�
�
� 
�	
�
��
�
��
 
��
'
�
��
�
?
�
��
�

�
�
 
�
��
:
�
�
�
 
�
�0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%
�
��
/�
�

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
@
�
'
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
�

�
)
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
��
� 
�
�

)
�
�
��
�

�

*
�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
�

�
)
�
��
�
8
��
%
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
�	
�
�
��
�

��

%
�
��
 
��

�
�
� 
�
��
��

�
 
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
8
%
�
�)
�
�
��
�%
�
�
�

�
��
 
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
'
�'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
5
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
��

�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
� 
�

�
�
%
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�=
�
�9
*
�

�
'
�

�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
%
�
��
�
��
 
��
%

�
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
�&
;
�
�
�


�
%
�

 
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
��

�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
/�
(
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��

�
�
��

'
�
�
��
�
8
�
�
��
��
�
�
� 
�

�
�
%
��
�
�
�
A�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
	
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
�+
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
'
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
�)
��
��
	
�
�


�
��
�
 
��
�
��
 
�

�
�
%
��
'
�
�(
�
��
�
�
�)

��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

�

�
0
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�<
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
	
�-
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
+
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
 
 
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�)
'
�
�
�

�
�
'
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
+
�
��
�
+
+
�

�

#
�
'
��
��
��
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
+
�
��
�
+
+
/�
&
�
)
��
�
'
�
�
�
�
��

�

�
:
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
:
��
��
�
%
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
'
�
�
/�
1
�
)
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
'
�
�
� 
�	
�
��
�
��
 
��
'
�
��
�
?
�
��
�

�
�
 
�
��
:
�
�
�
 
�
�0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

%
�
��
/�
�

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
@
�
'
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
�

�
)
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
��
� 
�
�

)
�
�
��
�

�

*
�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
�

�
)
�
��
�
8
��
%
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
�	
�
�
��
�

��

%
�
��
 
��

�
�
� 
�
��
��

�
 
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
8
%
�
�)
�
�
��
�%
�
�
�

�
��
 
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
'
�'
�
�
�
�
'
�
� 
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
5
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
��

�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
� 
�

�
�
%
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�=
�
�9
*
�

�
'
�

�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
%
�
��
�
��
 
��
%

�
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
�&
;
�
�
�


�
%
�

 
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
��

�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
/�
(
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��

�
�
��

'
�
�
��
�
8
�
�
��
��
�
�
� 
�

�
�
%
��
�
�
�
A�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
	
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
�+
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
'
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
�)
��
��
	
�
�


�
��
�
 
��
�
��
 
�

�
�
%
��
'
�
�(
�
��
�
�
�)

��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 38



3
1

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

#

�
0
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
�=
>
"
"
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
��
�'
�
�)
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�)
��
'
��
'
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
�

�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
%
�

�
�
��
)
�
 
��
��
��
�
��
%
�H

;
0
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
,
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
%
��
��
��
'
�
��
�

�
��
�
�)
��
'
��

�
 
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
� 
�
 
�	
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

��
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
�	
�
��
)
�
��
��
�'
�
�

)
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
%
�H

;
0
��
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�
$
'
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
?
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�
��
 
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�

>�
��
��
�
�
��
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
��

�
 
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
-
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
	
��
��
�
��
'
�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�

<
�
��
%
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�'
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�H

;
0
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
4
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
'
�
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
�

�
��
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�H

;
0
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
�
�
�
��
%
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�)
�
�
8
��
�

)
'
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	
��
��
�
 
��

�
�
�
�	
�
�
8
��
�
��
�
��

��
%
��
 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
H
;
0
��
�
�
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 39



3
2

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

-

�
�
	
�0
�
�
�
�
�
�"
9
�
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
	
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
�
�	
��
��
�
�"
	
�
�
�
��
�
�"
9
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
0

�
�
�
��
%
��
��
�
��
)
��
'
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
:
�
�
�
 
��
%
�

	
��
� 
��
�
�
��
�

��
��

�

9�
�
'
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
)
�
��
�

�
%

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
�

��
��
�
��
@
�

�
�B
��
�
��
�
%
��
�
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�,
�
6
��
��
�
��
@
6
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�!
�
0
9�
)
�

8
��
�
�%
�
��
%
��
�
�

�
 
�
�
��
%
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

	
�
�

�
 
�
�
�
 
��

��
�
�
��

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
,
�
��
�

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

%
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
	
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
?
1
�

�
�
 
��
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�
��

�

99
�
��
�
��
%
�
�)
�

�
��
�
�
 
�

�
��
�
�
� 
�	
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�)
�
�%
�
�
�A
��

�

�
��
�
��

�

�
��
�
�
�

�
G
�
�

�
 
�

�
�	
��
�

�
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
-
�
?
�
�
�
��
�
�$

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
?
�
�

�

$
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
=
�
�
��
�
�=
�
�
�@
�
$
��
)
�
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
/�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
%
�9
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
9�
�

�
�
� 
�
 
�

��

�
�
?
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
 
��

�
�
	
�

�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

 

�
�
��
%
��

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
4
�
�
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
��
)
�

�
�)
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
)
�

�
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
 
��
�
 
��

�
>�
�
��
�
�
 
�

)
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�M
�
��

��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
�
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
 
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
/�
�

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

(

�
%
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�B
@
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
?
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
'
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
%

�
�
�
�
�

�

*
�
>�

�
��
��
��
�

�
>�
�
��
��
�
 
�

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

8
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�
 
A�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
��
�
�A
��
�
)
�	
�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�

�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
8
��
�
�%
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�=
�
$
�&
�
�
A�

 
�
��
��
�
��
)
�
��
�
 
�

�
�	
��
��

�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 40



3
3

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
%
��
�
�(
 
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
'
�
�
%
�
�2
!
�
�
�
��

�
7
��
)
A�
�
7
'
�%
'
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

!
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
!
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
 
�

��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�/
�(
 
�
��
�
 
�	
�
�

0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
=
��
��
�
��
'
�
��

�
�
�

�
%
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
��

!
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
��
��
�
�

A
�

�'
�
�
%
'
��
�
�
�
�?
��
�

��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��

+
�

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
N�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
�
�

!
(
(
�

B
��
�
 
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�


�
�
8
��

�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
�
6
�

+
�
�
6
�

+
�
�
6
�

(
��
�%
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

 
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
��
%

�
�
 
��

�

!
(
(
��
�
 
��
�
��

�
��
 
�	
�
�

&
;
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
%
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
�

&
;
�
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�'
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
>�
�
�
��
�
�
�

)
��
'
�@
(
/�
@
(
��
�
�

�
�
��
)
�

�
�

�
�
�)
�

�
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
 
� 
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
��

�
%
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
��
�
�
�)
��
'
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
5
4
�

(
)
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��



�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

2<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
/�
6
�

�
�
�
/�
6
�

�

H
�

8
�'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
�

�
�
��
'
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
 
	
�
%
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
'
��
��
�
 
�


�
�
8
�	
�
��
?
�
/�
B
�

�
'
�

�

)
�

8
�	
�
��
%
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
 
�

	
�
��
'
�
�@
(
��
�
 
�&
;
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
)
��
��

@
(
��
�

�
�
�)
�

�
��
%
�

�
�
�
'
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 41



3
4



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

B
�
�+
�

&
�
)
�'
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
��
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
�
 
�

2)
�
�
�<
#
�+
�
-
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
/�
�
6
�

�
�
/�
�
6
�

�
�
/�
�
6
�

+
�
�
�2
%

�
�
�
3�
'
�
�
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�

2%

�
�
�
3�
'
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
?
!
/�
�

�

��
�

�
0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

B
�
�,
�

6
��
��
�
��
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�'
�
��
��
8
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

8
�
��
��
)
�
�
��
�
 
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��
%
�
�
E�
1
�
�
�
��
%
�2
)
�
�
�

!
�
��
-
,
�
3�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�
��

�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

Page 42



3
5

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
8
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
�=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
E�
#

2

�

�
�
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
+
�

!
?
B
�9
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
9

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
 
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�+
�
��
:
'
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
)
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
 
/�
&
�
)
��
�
�
��
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
��
�
�

!
?
B
�9
�B
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
%
�?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
?
�
?
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
%
�
��
��
�
�
��
,
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
�
� 
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�

$
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�!
?
B
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
�
 
�

?
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
/�
�

�
-
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
E�
#

2

�

�
�
	
��
�
	
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�	
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�

�
�

�
��
%
��
�B
��
�
 
��
��
8
�(
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�

?

�
��
��
B
�
(
��
�
 
�
��
��
�
)
� 
�
�
�=
�
��
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
��
�
��
 

�
��
�

 
�
�
�&
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
E�
#

2

#

�
&
�	
	
�
��
�
�
�7
:
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 43



3
6

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
#

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�6
�
�
��
�!
�	
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�0
!
�
�
�
��
� 
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
�
-
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
9B
��
��
��
�
��
%
�

2)
�
�
�<
#
�+
�
�
 
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

 
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
'
��
�'
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�

'
��
��

�
�
��

�
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��

 
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
 
�

)
��
'
��
�
�%
'
	
�
�

�
�
%
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
'
��
��

�
��
'
�

�
 
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
�
�
�

(
�

�G
�
�
��
��
�D
�6

�

�
 
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�&
=
:
�F
��

�
�
�

�
��
*
+
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
'

�
�
%
'
�!
(
J�
�

�
�
��
��
�F
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�?
@
B
�
(
�

�
:
�
�
�
��
 
��

� 
�(
�
%
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
4
�

!
(
(
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
�!
�
�
�
��

<
��
 
��
�

�
��
�
�D
�6

��
��
!
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�)
'
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��

�

��
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
/�

&
;
�
�
�!
�
�
�
�/
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
/�
6
�

�
�
�
/�
6
�

+
�
5
��
�&
�
�
�9
��
�
�)
��
'
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
+
/�
�
/�
�
��

� <

�
�
8
 
�
)
�
�	
�
�(
=
&
<
E�
�

�
�&
�
�
��
�
�1
�
)
�

 
��
�
�

1
��
��
�(
=
&
<
�,
�
�9
��
5
�)
��
'
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��

2�
�
/-
6
3�
�

�
�&
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�
�(
=
&
<
�-
�
�

9�
,
�)
��
'
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
24
/�
6
3�
�

�

��
�

�
0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

&
��
+
�
,
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
9!
��
��

�
2�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�'
�
3�

.�
��
��
�
�
�
�

+
6
�

,
6
�

,
6
�

�
$

�
�
�
'
�
�
�+
A�
�
�F
�5
�9
�

�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�,
6
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
,
	
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

2�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

A
� 
�
�

��
�
�
A�

%

�
��
��
��
�
�
 
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
%
3E
�

?
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

,
6
�

,
6
�

,
6
�

�
$

�
�
�
'
�
�
�+
A�
�
�F
�5
�9
�

�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�,
6
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�
,
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

.�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
6
�

,
6
�

�
6
�

�
$

�
�
�
'
�
�
�+
A�
�
�F
�5
�9
�

�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 44



3
7

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
90

�
��
��
��

2�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�'
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�,
6
�

&
��
+
�
,
 
�

��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
9B
��
9�
�
�
��
�
%
�

2�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�'
�
3�

.�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
6
�

,
6
�

�
6
�

�
$

�
�
�
'
�
�
�+
A�
�
�F
�5
�9
�

�
�
�
	
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�,
6
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
-

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
,
�

=
�
�

�
��
�%
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
4
6
�

�
�
4
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��
��
��

�

&
��
+
5
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
-
,
�)
��
'
�	
�
�'
�'
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�%
'
	
�
�

'
�
�
 
�

2<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
+
/-
6
�

�
�
+
/-
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 45



3
8

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

4

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�6
�
�
��
�!
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�	
'
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�1
@
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�'
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�'
�
�?
�
��
��
�
 
�(
�

��
�
�
��
��
�

(
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
%
�
�
� 
��
:
� 
�
��

�

+
5
�.
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��

�
�
�?
�
�

�
/�
$
'
�
�
�


�
G
�
�
�
��
�'
�
��
�'
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
)
��
'
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
��
�'
�
�	
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
��
�'
�
�(
�
*
(
��
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

)
� 
�

�
�'
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�
'
�
��
�
��
�
:
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
%
�
�
��
 
�	
�
�

�'
�
��

�
 
�
�/
�$
'
��
�)
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
��
�'
�
�(
�
*
(
�)
��
��
��
�
��
 
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
��
�

�
 
��
:
�
�
�
 
�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

4

�

�
:
�
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
�9
��
�

�
�
��
F
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

=
�
9%
�
��
%
9�
�

�
�
�
��
�

%
�
��
 
�	
�
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�@
B
�
*
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
 
�&
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
��
�
��

�
+
�
,
�
�	
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
��
%
��
��
��
M
��
%
��
��
�
�
�
�
 
��
)
�
�
�
�

�

�

&
�
%
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�)
��
'
�&
;
�
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
%
�)
'
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��

�
 
��
�
/�
=
��
��
�

�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
%
�
��
�
��
�
%
��

�
 
��
�
��

�
�
�&
;
�
�
�

�
� 
��
�

�
��
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
 
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
%
�)
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�


�
�
�
�
��
 
�

�
�
�
�
 
/�
$
'
��
��
�
'
�
�
�
�2
�
��
?
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
3�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
'
�
�
� 
�'
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
 
��
'
�
��
�
 
��
)
�
�
�
�

/
�&
;
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
�
%
�

�
��
��
%
��
�
��
�'

�
�
%
'
�
�
��
&
�

�
'
�;
�

8
�
'
�

�
/�

(
��
��
�
��
�
�



��
 
��
�
��
 
�

�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��

�
 
�
�
�
 
�'
�%
'
�G
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
+
�
@
�
'
�
�
�
�
��
��
8
�
'
�
� 
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�

%

�
�
�
�
�

�

H
�

8
��
�
�%
�
��
%
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
��
�
�
�
�
�%
�
�
�)
��
'
�$
� 
�
�<

�
��
��
�

%

�
�
�
�
A�
�
�

�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�<

�
��
��
��
�
�<
��
�
�
/�
�

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 46



3
9

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

4

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�	
�
�
��
 
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
��
�
+
5
�+
+
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
<
��
 
��
�

�
��
�
�(
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
�
�
��
�
��
�%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
&
;
�
�
��
'
�
�>
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
� 
�
�*
�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
=
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�/
�

�
?
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
%
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
%
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
�

��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
'
�
�<
(
�
A�
��
��
'
�
��
�
��

�
�
/�
�

�
%

�
�
�
�

)
��
'
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
��
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
%
�
�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
��
'
�

�
��

�
��
��
��
�
 
/�
�

�

�
-
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�

�
�1
�
�
�
 
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

4

-

�
�
	
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
!
��
	
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
H
�

8
�)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��
%

�
�
�
�
��
'

�
�
%
'
�<

�
��
��
��
�
�<
��
�
�
A�

�
�

�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
A�
$
� 
�
�<

�
��
��
�

�

=
�
%
�
��
%
�)
�

8
�)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��
%

�
�
�
�
�

�
�<
�<
��
�
 
�<
�%
�$
� 
�
��
�
��

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
��
�
��
�
+
5
�+
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
M
�
��
��
�
 
�

��
8
��

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
'
�
�
�
�I
�
��
��
�
�
�
 
	
�
%
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
 
��
��
��
�
��
�'
�
��
�

�

(

�
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
�
�
 
��
�
 
��
�
�
 
	
�
%
�
��
�
��
'
�
 
��
�
��

�
�

�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
>�
�
��
��
��
��
�
'
��
��
�
 
�

��
8
/�
�

�
+
,
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

Page 47



4
0

�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��

��
	�
�
��
4�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
 
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��

�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
	"
�

�
<
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

(
�0
��
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

C	
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�


�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
���
�

�
�
��
�
��
�	
��

(
�0
�$
��
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
�&
�
�
��
	�
&
��
�
��
�
�
� 

�
�
��
��

	

�
�
��
�
 
�
�

	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�$
/
�
$
�E
��
�
�

�
	�

(
�0
�#
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�


�	
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
4�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�


�

��
��
�
��
���
��
�
��

�
��
�
�


�
��
�

Page 48



4
1

�
��

�&
��
�
��
��
�
��



�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

,
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
	�
��
'
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
))
��
�


���

	
�
��
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��


M�

•
 
8
�
��

�

�
�
�

�
�
���
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


��
�


�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
&
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�G
	�
�
�
��
�

•
 
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�
� 
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	C
�

�
��
��

�
�
��
	�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
��
	�
�	
C�

�



�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

	�
	�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
� 

�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
4�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�


� 

�
�

�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
4�

�



�
�
�

�
�
��
��

	
�
�
��
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�


4�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�


�	
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
�


��

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


	�
�
�
�
��
	

	�
�
�


�	
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
�

�
��
��
�	
�
��

�
�
�


�
�
��

�
�
��
�


��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�+
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
'
�


��
�
�
�

�
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
	�
��
�

�

�

�
	�
�
	�
#
2
��
$
H
��
&
8
,
�
&
7
��
�
�

�
�
��
<
�
��
�
��
�
��
$
/
�
��

	
��

�
�	
-�

•
 
;
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�

�
 
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	�
+�
��
�
�
��
	�
��

�
�
��
	�
�	
-�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
	�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
��
�



�


��
�
��
))
4�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
8
�
�
�4
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

�

��
��

•
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
.
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
 
��
�


��
�
�
�


�+
 
�
�
��
��
�
		

�
��
-�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
� 

�
�
�)
�


�
�)
�
�
��
�
6	
�	
��
�
�
��

�
�


��
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�



�

�
�
	�
 

�
�
��
))
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
�'
�
�
�

�



�
�
��
�	
��
�


��
��
3�
��
�



�
�

��
��
��
�
�

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
��
�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��

	
'
��

&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
D
�
�
��
�
�
�
�C
��
�
�
�

�

�

�
��
��

�

�
�
��	
��
�
�
	�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
M�

•
 
E
��

�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��


��
�
�
�

�

�
��



	
��
		

�
�
� 

�
�
�&
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
	�
��
�

�

��
��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�


��
��



�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�


��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
		

�
�
�'
�
�
�	
��
'
�
�
�
�

�
�	
�
�
��
�



�
�
��

�
))
4�
8
�
�
4�
!
I
�
�
4�
!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
�&
�
�
��
	4
�,
��

�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
+�
))
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�

	
��
��
�
-�

•
 
�
�
�

�
 
��
�


��
�
�
�


��
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�



�

�
�
	�
 

�
�

�
���
�
�
���
�
�
	�
��

�
�	
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
4�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�


�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
�'
�
�
�
�



�
�
��
�	
4�
�
��

�

�
�
��
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
3�
��
�

�
�

��
��
��
�
�

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
		
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
�&
�
�
��
��
�


�,
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
�

	
�


��
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
	�
�
�


��
�
3�
��

�
�
	�
�E
��

�
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
��
��

�
�


�
�	
��
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

	

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

	
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
��
��
��
��
:�
�

	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�


��
�
�
��
��

	
� 

�
��
��
.
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
		
��

� �

Page 49



4
2

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��
�

� �
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
.
�
'


�
��
�
��
+,
&
;
-�
�
��
�



�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�	
�
�
 
	�
��
�
��

�
�



�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�


��
��
�
�$
4#
/
0
�

�
 
�
��
�
H
��
�
�$
4/
#
#
��
��
�
�
�



�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�*

�
�
�&
�
��

�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
�
 
	�
��
�
��
,
&
;
�

�
�



�
�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�


�
�
�$
/
/
2
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�$
/
/
0
��
�:
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�,
&
;
�+
�
��
��


�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
4�
��
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
4�
�
��
��

�

-
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�	
�
	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
C�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�


�
��
�




��
��


��


��
"
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�


�
��


�

�
��
�
��
�!
�
��
�
�I
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
	�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�


� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
�

�
�$
/
/
0
4�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�4
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
� 
�
��
�
�
�	
4�
�

�
�
��
	�
��
��
5

�
��


��
�


�&
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�:
�
3�
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
 
�
�

��
��
�


4�
 
�

�
�
�

�
��
�


�
	�
�
��
�
��
���
�


��
#
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�

�
3�
��


� �

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	4
��
�
�
�&
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 

�
���
�
��
	�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
3�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
	�
��

/
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
M�
8
��
��
��

�
�
��
�


�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��

	
��

�
��
��%
�
��

�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�



�
�
�	
��
��



�
�
�
	�

�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��


�
��
�

�
�
��
�


��
 
�
��
�
�
		
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�'
�
�
�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
� �

�



�
��
�
�


�
�M
�;
�
��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�
��
�
		

�
�
��
�


�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�	
�
�
�


��
�


��
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�

	
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
		
��
�


�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
 
�
�'
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
4�
 
�
��

�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
���
��
�	
��
��
'

�
��


��
�


�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�
3�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��

�
�
�


�
��
� �

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
"
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�

�	
�
�

�
���
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�


��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�


��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	4
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

�	
�
�

�
���
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
4�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	

�

��
��

�
 
��
��
��
�
��

	
��

�
��
��,
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
4�
�


�
��
�

�
�
��
�


�


�
�
�	

�
�
�
��
��
��

�

�

�
	4
�

 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�



�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
'
�
��
�


��

��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
,
��
�
�
�
���
�
��
��
�


�
��

�
�
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
���

	
�
	�
��
�


�

	�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
4�
 
�
��

�
��
�
��
�

	
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
		
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
���

	
�
	�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�



�



�
�
�	
��
�


�

��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
4�
�
�


��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
���
�
��
��


��
�

�
�
��
�


�


	
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
"
�/
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��;
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�


��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
	4
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
��
� �

� � � � � � �

Page 50



4
3

�
��

�&
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
(

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�!
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

1
@
�+
�

�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
 
�)
��
'
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�6

�
2)

�
�
�<
#
�+
+
�
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
6
�

-
,
6
�

�
�
6
�

�
?
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
A�
�
�
A�
�'
�
�
%
'
��
�
��

�
��
&
��

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
�
�+
�
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
'
�
�

�
�
0
+
4
��
��
��
��
�
 
��
��
��

�
�
	
��
�
�=
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�G
�
�
��
��
�

2)
�
�
�!
�
��
-
�
3�

�
�
�
4
��
�
�

�
6
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

"
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
��

�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
�

�
��
%
�
��

�

��
�

�
�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
�
�!
(
(
�

(
 
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
/�
��
�
�

�
�

@
�
%
��
�
 
�(
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
9(
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
4
/�
6
�

�
,
/4
6
�

+
4
/�
6
�

<
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
�
�
-
�4
��
5
/�
6
A�
�
�
�
4
��
�

�
�
/�
6
��

�

$
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
 
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
 
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�

�
��
%
�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
,
-
2�
�3
�

&
;
�
�
/�
=
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
'
�
�
��
�
%
�
��
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
�

;
�
�

�
-
E�
!
��
�
�-
�

�
�

�
&
�
� 
�
��
��
�

�

�'
��
�

�
�
%
�
�

�

&
;
�
�
��
�

%
�
�9
�$
�
�	
�
�

�
 
 

�
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
�	
�
�

 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
 
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
%
�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
�
�

�6
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�)
'
�
��
�
�
��

�'
�
��
�'
�
�
�	
�
��
�
%
��
�
��
'
�
�

�

�
�
�%
'
	
�
�

'
�
�
 
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

4
�
/�
6
�

�
4
�
/�
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��
��
��

�

&
��
+
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�2
$
�
��
"
�
3/
��
'
��
 

�
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
I�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
��
�

8
�
�

�
�
 
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
��
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

,
�
/�
6
�

�
,
�
/�
6
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
&
;
�
�
��

�
�
/�
�

�
��

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

&
��
+
�!
(
(
�

6
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�)
'
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
� 
��
��

�
�
��

	
�
�
8
%

�
�
�
 
�
�%
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
�

��
%
�
�'
�

�
��
��
'
�
�

��
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
+
/+
6
�

�
�
+
/+
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��
��
��

�

Page 51



4
4

&
��
�
5
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�'
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�'
�

�
)
��
'
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
� 
�

�
��
�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
/�
6
�

�
�
�
/�
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

1
@
�!
(
(
�

-
�
�

�
'
��
 

�
�
�F
�;
�
�
�
%
�

�
�
�
�
��
J�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

'
�%
'
�G
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
6
�

�
�
�
6
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
�
 
�G
�
�

�
�

�
�
�	
�
�

&
;
�
�
/�
�

�
%

�
�
�
�

��
)
�

 
�
��
�
�

�
��
�%
�
�
��

2�
�
�
�
�
��
��

%
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
 
��
'

�
�
%
'
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
@
�
�
�
!
��
�

�
�
�
A�

�
�
	
��
�
'
�
 
��
�
�
'
�

=
�
��
	
�

/
2�
�
�

�
�
�&
;
�
�
3�

��
 
��
�
��

�
)
��
��
	
�
�

 
��
�
%
%

�
%
�
��
 
��
�
��
�

 
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
�/
1
�
�
�'
�

�

&
�
)
�
�
�
�&
;
�
�
�$
�
��
�
4
4
�

-
�
5
-
�
4
�
�
�

�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�



�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
2

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
 
��
�
��

�

!
�
�
��

"
�
 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
$
�

%
�
��

#
�
��
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
'
�

�
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

!
�
�
%
�

$
�

�

�
$

�
�
 
�

(



�
)
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

&
��
+
4
�

!
(
(
-
4
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
9�
�
�
��
��

	
�
'
�
�
��
�

�
2<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
/�
6
�

�
+
�
/�
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

&
;
�!
(
(
��
�
5
�

�
�
�

�
�9
�

�
�
�
�
9�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
��

	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�&
;
�
�
��
�
�

+
+
/�
6
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
�
+
�

!
(
(
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
 

�
�
8
��

�


�
)
 
�
�	
�
'
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�

�
	
��
�
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
+
/�
6
�

�
�
+
/�
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

&
��
+
+
�
�

�
�
��
9

�
�
�

�
�
 
��

�
�
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
I�
��
�
�

�
��
�'
�
�
��
'
�

�
�
 
�)
�
��
	
�
��
%
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

4
,
/5
6
�

�
4
,
/5
6
�

(
)
�
��
��
%
��
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
 
��
��

.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
/�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��

�
��
��
��

�

&
��
�
4
�

!
(
(
�

�
�
�
�
��
�8
��
��
 
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

��
>�

�
 
��
�
�

�
�
 
��

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
5
�$
�

%
�
��
�
�
5
A�
�
5
�

=
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
/�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�

B
�%
�

�
��
�

�
�
5
��
�
�
�
A�
�
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 52



4
5

�
��

�&
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

5

�

�
	
��

��
��

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
?�
	
�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�0
!
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�	
��

�	
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
�
��
+
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
	
�
�
�
��
'

�
�
%
'
�*
�
8
��
%
��
�
��
�

�

.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

/
��
�
�%
	
�
	
��
!
��

��
��
��
�
%
��
�
A�
�
�
��

�
�
%
��
�
A�
H
�
�
��
1
�
�
��

�
�
�
A�
H
�
�
��
!
�
��
�
�
A�

H
�
�
�
�

�
'
�

�
�
A�
�
'
�

	
�

�
��
�
 
��
��
:
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
�%
�
��
%
��
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
�
��
*
��
�
�?
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
��
��
�
)
��
%
��

�
��
��
%
��
�

�

�
��
��
A�
*
�
��
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
'
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
 
��
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
�

��
��

�
�
��
 
��
�
��
�
8
��
%
��
'
�
��

�
%

�
�
�
�
��
�

)

�

 
/�
�

�� �
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�+
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�0
�
��
��
�
�

�$

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
��
�
�)
��
'
�!
�	

�

�
��
��
��
�'
�
�
�	
�
%
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�

�
)
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
 
�%
��
�
��
'
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
��
�)
��
��
	
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
)
'
�
�
��

�
	
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
'
�
�

�

�
��
�

�
�
�
/�
�

�
�:
��

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�

�
��
��
�

�
A�
�'
�
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�)
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
�)
��
'
��
'
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��

�
'
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
'
�
�?
��
�

��
��
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
/�
�

�� 1
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
	
	
��
�

�!
�
 
�
�!
�
�
��
�
I�
��
�
�8
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
8
�
��
'
�
��

�
��
��
%
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
� 
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
�'
�
��
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
%
�

�
�
�
�
��
/�
$
'
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
%
��
�
�

�
�
�
'
�
 
��
�
�

��
8
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
��
%
/�
(
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
 
��
��
�'
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�&
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
)
�

�
�
�
�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
'
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
��
�
 
�

��

�
'
�

�
�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
'
�
�

�
��
��
�
�/
��

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
�
��
+
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
� 
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
��
�
�
 
�
��
E�
?

�
�<
�

�
A�
;
�
#
A�
!
�B
@
�

�

�
�
�

�
�

�
+
��

&
�
��
��
�
�
)
�(
<
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
 
��
��
.�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
 
�

�
�

�
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
)
��
�
%
�
%
�
 
�)
��
'
�*
(
�
�
/�
H
�
�'
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
'
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
%
��
�
��
'
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
'
��
%
��
��
��
��
�
 
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
A�
	
�
��

�
�
)
��
'
�
��
�
�
�

�
+
+
��

�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
�A
��
�
�
�
��
��
�'
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�)
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�*
(
�
�
��
�
 
�)
�
�)
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�'
�
�

�

	
�
'
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
/�
(
�

�
�
�
��
'
�
��
)
�
� 
��
�

��
��
��
��

�
�
�

	
�

�
�
%
'
��
�
 
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
'
�
�;
�
�
�'
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�.
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
'
�
�
�
�'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
 
�)
��
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
A�
)
��
'
��
�
�
 
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
�

�
+
�
/�
,
6
��
��
�'
�
�
�
/�
<
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
)
�
� 
��
�

��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�'
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 53



4
6

�
�
�

	
�

�
�
%
'
��
�
,
,
��
�
�
�
�

�
 
��
�
��
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�
A�
+
�
6
��
��
�'
�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�
�
/�
&
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
%
�
�'
�
�
�
��
�
)
�>
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
'
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
)
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
 
�
 
��
��
*
(
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
%
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�

� 
�
�
��
��
��

�
��
�%

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��

%
�
��
 
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�2
?

�
�
�
�(
��
�
�
A�
?

�
�
�
�H

��
�
3�
�
�
 
��

�
 
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
 
��
��
�
��
	
��
�

�

.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�@
�$
'
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�)
�

8
��
%
�

)
��
'
��
'
�
� 

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�2
(
�*

3�
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�

�
 
�
�
�
��
�C
,
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
'
��
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
	
��
��
�
)
�

 
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
8
��
%
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
 

�
�
��
%
/�
(
�
��
� 
�

�

 

�
�
�

�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
8
�

�
�
%
�*
�
�
�

�
�
��
1
�
��
��
�
��
'
�
�

+
+
�'
�.
�
��
�	
�
�)
�
�
�
�+
�
9�
�
�
/�
*
�%

�
�
��
)
�

8
�

�
N�
�
��
��
��
�
�%
�
��
%
�

)
��
'
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
 
�)
��
'
��
'
�
�<
&
@
�)
�

8
�

�
	
�
�
�
 
��
��
�'
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
H
�
�
�)
�

�
'
��
�

�
�
�/
�?
�
��
��
�
%
%
�

�

 
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
%

�
�
�
��
%
�)
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
��

�
�
8
��
�
��
:
�
�
�
 
��
%
�

�'
�
��
�

%
�
��
�
�
�A
�)
'
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
%
�
%
��
%
�)
��
'
��
'
�
��
�

�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

)
��
'
��
��
�
�
 
�
��
/�
=
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
�'
�
�
 
�'
�
� 
��
�
�
�

�
�

	
�
��
%
��
��
�
�
�
 
��
�
 
��

%
�
�
��
�
 
�	
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�D
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
 
�
��
/�
$

�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
�
 
��
��
*
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
��
�
��
�
�
/�
1
�9
#
�M
�

>�
�
8
�
��
�	
�
��
%
��

 
�

�
 
��
�
 
��
�
�	
�
� 
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
�
��
�
�

?
�
��
�
�

�
�
�=
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
8
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

=
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
�'
�
�
 
�'
�
� 
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
%
��
��
�
�
�
 
�

�
�
 
��

%
�
�
��
�
 
�	
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�D
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
 
�
�

	
�
�
�
�'
�
� 
/�
�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
�
��
4
�

(
 
 

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
 
�
%
��
�
�
��
�
%
��
 
�
�
��
��
�
 
�	
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
�

�

<
�
�
8
��
�<
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
��
'
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

$
�
)
�
��
�

�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
%
�

 
��
%
��
'
�
� 
�
%
�)
�
�
��
�	
��
�
/�
$
'
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
%
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
�	
� 
��
�
%
�
�'
�

�
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�'
�
�
�)
��
��
�
�

�
'
�
�
�
� 
�
%
�)
�
�
��
�	
��
�
��
�
 
� 
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
'
�

$
�
)
�
��
�

�
�
'
��
�
�
�
�
��
/�
�
��
�
�
��
��
'
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
8
��
%
�

�
��
�'
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�A
��
�



�
�
��
�
�)
�
� 
�
��
�
��

��
�
�
�
��
�:
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�'
��
��

�
�
�	
�
��
'
�
�)
�
�
�

��

)
�

 
/�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�
 
��
'
�
��
�'
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�:
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�'
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�

�
�

�
��
��
%
��
�
�
=
J�
��
�
��
�



�
��
'
��
��
�
�/
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�'
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�

�
�
 
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
%
��
'
��
��

�
�
�
 
�

�
/�
�

�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
�
��
�
�

?
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
�

�
�'
�
�(
��
�
'
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�%
�
�

�

(
��
�

�
�'
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�'
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
%
�
��
��
�'
�
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�%
�
A�

�
�

�
�
�
:
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
��
 
 

�
�
�
�
 
�)
��
��
	
�
�O
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�/
��

H
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
2�
�

�
'
�
�
�
 
�

�

�
�
�&
;
�$

�
 
��
%
��
��
�
 
�

 
�
3�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
A�

�
�

%
�

�
�
�
A�
�
�
�
�

�

�

8
�
��
A�
�
�
�
�'
��
��
	
�
��
��
/A
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
)
��
'
��
�

�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
A�
$

�
 
��
%
��
��
�
 
�

 
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
�
 
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
��
'
�
��

�
�
�
�
%
�
�

�
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
)
�

�
�
�
�
�G
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�� �

�
�

�
��
��
'
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
A�
�'
�
��
�
)
� 
� 
��
�
��
�

�
'
�	
��
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

	
�
�
��
%
��
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
�	
�
'
�
��
��
��
�
��
'
��
 
��
�
��
��
9�
��
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�
�
/�

$
'
��
�'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
��



�
 
��
�
��
�
�P
�

�
:
�
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
P/
�$
'
�
�

+
�
�(
�
%
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

Page 54



4
7

!
��
�
�
�
��
%
�2
;
�
�
�
%
��
�

�
�
�
�
3�
(
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
 
��
��
�
)
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
	
�
�
��
%
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
�	
�
'
�
��
��
��
�
��
'
��
 
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�� �(
��
�

�
�
��
)
'
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
	
�
�
G
�
�
�
��
�
�%
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

'
��
�'
�

�
�
'
��
 
�)
�
�
� 
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
%
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
/�
(
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
'
�
��
�
��
��
�
�'
��
��

�
'
�

�
�
)
�
�

�%
'
�A
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
%
�

�
�
��
'
�
��
'
��
 
J�
��
%
�
�
��
�

�
%
�
9	
�
�)
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�'
�
��
'
��
 
J�
��
)
�
�

�
�

�
'
�
�
�
/�
$
'
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
�
�
�)
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
'
�
��
%
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
%
��
�
��
�
/�
�

�� �
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
'
!
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
��
��
��

�(
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
%
��
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
�	
�
'
�
��
��
��
�
��
'
��
 
�2
�
�
 
�

�
+
�
3�

�
�'
�

�
�'
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
%
�
�

 
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
 
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�'
�
�
�
/�
=
�'
�

�
�
:
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
:
��
��
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
��
�
�
 
/�
�

�� �
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
� 
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
%
��
'
�
��
��
�
'
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
�A
�'
�
�

��
�
'
�
��
�

�
�
 
��
'
�
��
��
�
'
�
��
8
�
�
)
��
%
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
'
�
��
��
��
�
�

	
�
��
%
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
 
��
�
�	
�
'
�
��
��
��
�
��
'
��
 
/�
�

$
'
�
��
�

�
�
�
��

�
8
��
%
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
%
��
�
��

�
8
�
��
'
�
��
�

�
'
�
�
�
�

2�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
'
�
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
%
�
�

 
��
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
'
�
�'
�
�
�
3/
��

�� @
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
'
�
��
'
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�'
�%
'
�

�

�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
 
�
��
��
�
�

�
�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
)
��
�
�

�
A�
�
�
��
��
��
�
8
�
��
�
�

�'
�
�)
� 
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�)
��
'
��
��
'
�
� 
��
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
��
9�
�
�
��
��

	
�
'
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
�'
�
�
��
'
�

�
��
��
 
��
�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

�� ��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�2
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(
��
�
'
�
�E
�@
�
%
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
A�


�


�

�
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
��


3�
'
�
�
�
��
'
�
)
�
��
'
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
%
�
��
��
�
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�'
�
�

��
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�

�
�

�
'
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�
 
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
�
��
�
�
�2
4
6
��
�
 
��
6
�

�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
3A
�)
'
�

�
�
�
��

�
:
�
��
�
��
�
�2
)
'
�

�
��
�
��
 
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
'
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
%
��
'
��
 

�
�
3�
�
�



�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
6
/�

,
/5
�$
'
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
8
��
�
%
��
�
�
'
��
�
 
�

�
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�


�
�
�
%
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
E�
�

�� "
�
 
�

�
�'
�
�!
��
�
�
�
��
%
�(
�
��
�
�
�
5
A�
�'
�
� 
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
:
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
'
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
&
�

�
'
�;
�

8
�
'
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�


�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
8
��
 
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�)
'
�

�
��
'
�
�
�'
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

)
��
�
�
�
�
�
 
��

�
:
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
'
�
��
�
 
�

�
%
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
'
�
�A
��
�
 
��
'
�
�
�'
�
�
�
��
'
�
�
�'
�
�
�
�)
�

8
�
 
��
��
�
%
�)
��
'
��
�'
�

�

�
�
�
	
�

�
��
��
�'
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
'
��
��
�
 
�&
;
�$

�
 
��
%
��
��
�
 
�

 
�
�

	
�
��

�
� 
�

�
�
%
��
�
 
��
��
�

�
�'
�
�(
�
��
�
�
�
�
�%
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
'
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
%
�
�'
�
�
�
A�
�'
�
��
�

�
:
�
��
�
��
�
�)
��
��
�
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
'
�
 
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��
/�
�

Page 55



4
8

�� �
'
��
 

�
�
��
�
 
�;
�
�
�
%
��
�
�
�
��
�D
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�
'
�'
�
�
��
'
�
)
�
�

�'
�
��
+
,
6
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�
%
'
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
�%
�
��
 

�
�
8
��
�
�

�
�)
�
�
8
��
�	
�
�
��
/�
(
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�'
�

�
��
�
�
�)
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
 
��
�
�'
�
�
�
��
��
�%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�%
'
�

�
 

�
�
8
��
%
�

�
��
��
'
�
�
�

@
�
%
��
�
 
��
�
��
�)
'
�
��
/�
$
'
�
�
�
�)
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
 
��
�
��
'
�
�&
�

�
'
�

�
��
�'
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
A�
)
��
'
��
�
6
��
��
�'
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
��
'

�
�
�

0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
=
��
��
�
��
�
%
��
�
�
A�
&
�

�
'
�@
�
�
�A
�&
�

�
'
�H

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�;
�

8
�
'
�

�
�F
�1
�
�
	
�

/
��

�� $
'
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
�
�)
��
��
'
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�'
�
� 
�
�
�
%
�
�

 
�
�
�
�	
�
��

��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
'
��
�
�
��
'
�
��
��

��
��

�
 
�
�
��
%
��
'
�
��

��
�
� 
�
�
�
�
��
��
�'
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
'
��
 

�
�
/�
�

�� �

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

5

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
	
�
�
�
��
�
�*
�
	
��
�
�*
��
�
��
�
!
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
!
�	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�9
�!
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�1
@
��
�
+
5
�+
-
�
�
�
�
��
)
��
'
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
�)
��
'
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
)
�

 
�
�

�
�
+
�
�=
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
!
!
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
 
��
%
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
%
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�.
�
��
/�
�

�
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

5

#

�
�
	
�%
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
�3
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��
�
�0
!
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
��
�(
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
%

�
�
�
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

!
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�?
�
��
�

�
*
$
�!
�
�
 
�

�
?
�
�@
1
��
�
+
5
�+
4
�
0

�
�
��
��

�
�'
�
�1
�



��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

C
�
�
�
A�
�
�
�

�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
 
��
%
�C
�
,
�
A�
�
�
��
?
�
�%

�
�
�/
�

�
��
�
�
��
%
��
�

�

��
�
��
�
�%

�
�
��
 
/�
�
�



�
�
��
�
�)
�

8
��
%
��
�
�	
� 
�

��

�
C
+
�
�!
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
 
��
%
��
�
�	
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
 
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�

�

�
�
�
�
/�
?
�
�
��
��
�
�)
��
��
	
�
��

�
 
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

�

�
�
�*
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
 
 
�

�
?
�
�1
@
��
�
+
5
��
�
�
0

�
�
��
��
�*
�
��
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
��

�

&
;
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
%
��
�

�

��
�
��
�
�%
��
�
�
��
�
�5
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
?
�
�1
@
��
�
+
5
��
,
�
0

�
�
��
��

�
�'
�
�

�
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
:
��
��
�
%
��
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�1
�
��
�
��
�
�

�

&
;
*
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
%
��
�

�

��
�
��
�
�'
�
�
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
�

.�
��
�(
�
%
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
'
��
�!
�
�
%
�

�
�

Page 56



4
9

�

0�
�
�
�1
�
��

�1
��
�
�
��

*
�
	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
%
��
�

�

/�
$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
'
�

�
��
�

�

/�

$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
�)
�

�
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
%
��
�

�

/�
$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
�)
�

�
�
�
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
'
�

�
��
�

�

/�

$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
%
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
%
��
�

�

/�
$
'
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�'
��
��
��
'
�
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
�
%
�
 
��
�
��
'
�
��
'
�

�
��
�

�

/�

!
�
�
%
��
�

�

��



�
)
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�)
��
'
��
�
��
�
�

�
%
�
��
�

�
�'
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

�)
�
��
�
�

�
/�
�

�
'
�

�
��
�

�

��



�
)
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
'
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�)
��
'
��
'
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

� $

�
�
 
��



�
)
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
 
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
'
��
��
�
��
'
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�'
��
��
�

�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
��

�

��

Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
C

A
P

IT
A

L
S

C
H

E
M

E
S

:

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

-
A

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

H
o
u
s
in

g
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
,

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

G
ra

n
t

a
n
d

M
o
rt

g
a
g
e

R
e
s
c
u
e

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
S

u
c
c
e
s
s

-
M

a
lt
o
n

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
P

h
y
s
ic

a
l
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t

W
o
rk

s
a
n
d

M
a
rk

e
t

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

.

Q
u
a
lit

y
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

-
E

n
e
rg

y
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

to
C

o
u
n
c
il

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
.

A
c
ti
v
e

S
a
fe

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
-

D
ry

S
p
o
rt

s
C

e
n
tr

e
M

a
lt
o
n

S
c
h
o
o
l,

R
y
e
d
a
le

P
o
o
l
A

ir
H

a
n
d
lin

g
U

n
it
,

D
e
rw

e
n
t

P
o
o
l
R

e
m

o
d
e
l
R

e
c
e
p
ti
o
n
,

R
y
e
d
a
le

F
o
lk

M
u
s
e
u
m

a
n
d

M
ilt

o
n

R
o
o
m

s
.

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

-
IC

T
S

tr
a
te

g
y
,

C
a
r

P
a
rk

s
M

a
jo

r
R

e
p
a
ir

s
,

P
u
b
lic

C
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
s

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t,

M
a
jo

r
R

e
p
a
ir

&
R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
C

o
n
d
it
io

n
S

u
rv

e
y

a
n
d

R
y
e
d
a
le

H
o
u
s
e

P
u
b
lic

A
re

a
s
.

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
L

A
N

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E
R

E
P

O
R

T

P
E

R
I
O

D
 1

 A
P

R
I
L

 T
O

 3
1

 A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
0
0
9

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
3
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
7
0
0

1
8
0
0

1
9
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
1
0
0

2
2
0
0

2
3
0
0

A
im

O
n
e

-
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

im
O

n
e

-
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

im
T

w
o

-

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

A
im

T
w

o
-

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

A
im

T
h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

A
im

T
h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

A
im

F
o
u
r

-

A
c
ti
v
e

A
im

F
o
u
r

-

A
c
ti
v
e

A
im

F
iv

e
-

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm

A
im

F
iv

e
-

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm

E
x
te

rn
a

lly
F

u
n

d
e

d

R
y
e

d
a

le
F

u
n

d
e

d

CA
PI

TA
LE

XP
EN

DI
TU

RE
IN

VE
ST

ED
IN

CO
UN

CI
L

PR
IO

RI
TI

ES
20

09
/10

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
:

A
im

O
n

e
-

T
o

m
e
e
t

h
o
u
s
in

g
n
e
e
d
s

in
th

e
R

y
e
d
a
le

A
re

a
.

A
im

T
w

o
-

T
o

c
re

a
te

th
e

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

fo
r

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.

A
im

T
h

re
e

-
T

o
h
a
v
e

a
h
ig

h
q
u
a
lit

y
,

c
le

a
n

a
n
d

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

A
im

F
o

u
r

-
T

o
h
a
v
e

a
c
ti
v
e

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
w

h
e
re

e
v
e
ry

o
n
e

fe
e
ls

w
e
lc

o
m

e
a
n
d

s
a
fe

.

A
im

F
iv

e
-

T
o

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
R

y
e
d
a
le

D
is

tr
ic

t
C

o
u
n
c
il.

£
0
0

0
's

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
F

O
R

Y
E

A
R

=
£

4
,5

6
3

,0
0

0
;

T
O

T
A

L
A

C
T

U
A

L
T

O
3

1
A

U
G

U
S

T
2

0
0

9
=

£
3

3
0

,0
0

0

Agenda Item 5

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
O

N
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

:

H
o
u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d
s

-
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
to

w
a
rd

s
a

R
u
ra

l
H

o
u
s
in

g
E

n
a
b
le

r.

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
S

u
c
c
e
s
s

-
N

e
w

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

G
ra

n
t

S
c
h
e
m

e
a
n
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

L
ia

is
o
n
.

Q
u
a
lit

y
E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

-
E

x
tr

a
fu

n
d
in

g
to

d
e
liv

e
r

th
e

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

e
a
rl
y
.

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
L

A
N

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E
R

E
P

O
R

T

P
E

R
I
O

D
 1

 A
P

R
I
L

 T
O

 3
1

 A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
0

0
9

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

5
0

1
0
0

1
5
0

2
0
0

A
im

O
n
e

-
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

im
T

w
o

-
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
A

im
T

h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

AD
DI

TI
ON

AL
RE

VE
NU

E
EX

PE
ND

IT
UR

E
ON

CO
UN

CI
L

PR
IO

RI
TI

ES
20

09
/1

0

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
:

A
im

O
n

e
-

T
o

m
e
e
t

h
o
u
s
in

g
n
e
e
d
s

in
th

e
R

y
e
d
a
le

A
re

a
.

A
im

T
w

o
-

T
o

c
re

a
te

th
e

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

fo
r

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.

A
im

T
h

re
e

-
T

o
h
a
v
e

a
h
ig

h
q
u
a
lit

y
,

c
le

a
n

a
n
d

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

£
0
0

0
's

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
F

O
R

Y
E

A
R

=
£

2
9

7
,0

0
0

;
T

O
T

A
L

A
C

T
U

A
L

T
O

3
1

A
U

G
U

S
T

2
0

0
9

=
£

1
0

6
,0

0
0

Agenda Item 5

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

PART A 

 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
HEAD OF SERVICE:  HEAD OF ECONOMY AND HOUSING 
    JULIAN RUDD  
 
REPORTING OFFICER: HOUSING SERVICES MANAGER 
    RICHARD ETHERINGTON 
 
SUBJECT:   HOUSING – PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of progress made against the Council’s agreed Housing policies 

and to invite comments from the Committee. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members endorse the performance report and agree any 

amendments to policy or further action required to improve performance. 
 
3.0 PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 

Strategic Objective  

 
To enable the provision of 
affordable housing for rent 
and low cost ownership for 
sale 

 

• Rillington – completion of 9 rented homes 
expected in December 2009 

• Kirkbymoorside – completion of 19 rented 
homes in early March 2010 

• Pickering – development of 15 homes on an 
exception site has received funding. 
Consultation with Town Council and local 
community in progress. Planning application 
expected to be submitted shortly. 

• Habton – funding approved for 11 homes on 
exception site. Consultation with Parish Council 
and local community in progress. Planning 
application expected to be submitted shortly. 

 

• Pickering/Malton/Norton – funding in place for 

Agenda Item 6

Page 63



 

 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

various small sites to be developed to provide 
18 homes by March 2011 

• Malton – funding in place for 19 rented homes 
to be completed by March 2011 

• Norton – funding in place for 17 rented homes 
to be completed by March 2011 

• RHE working closely with Thornton-le-Dale 
and Rosedale Parish Councils to identify 
possible sites within the parishes for affordable 
housing.  

 

 
LPI 

 

 
Provision of 75 Affordable Housing Units/year- 52 

 
HMA 

 

 
Affordable Shortfall of 292 units per year 

 
Development of services to 
meet the needs of 
homeless applicants and 
implementation of 
measures to prevent 
homelessness. 
 

 

• A total of 201initial housing enquiries from 1 
April to 7 September 2009.  

• An 18% decrease in the number of homeless 
applications in the period 1 April 2009 to 8 

September 2009 compared to the same period 
in the previous year 

• A 44% reduction in the number of homeless 
acceptances in the period 1 April 2009 to 8 
September 2009 compared to the same period 
in the previous year 

• Temporary accommodation occupancy level as 
at 8 September 2009 of 14 households 
compared with 18 households on the 8 
September 2008.  

• A total of 11 households moved out of 
temporary accommodation in the period 1 April 
2009 to 8 September 2009 and 11 households 
moved into temporary accommodation. 

• A successful first year completed of the 
Ryedale Lettings Scheme, enhancements and 
improvements have been made to the scheme. 

• A total of 13 Bond Guarantee Schemes/Bond 
Payments and Rent in Advance delivered in 
order to prevent homelessness 

• Implemented a Multi agency Young Persons 
Accommodation panel in response to the 
increased numbers of 16/17 year olds 
approaching the Council for assistance. 

• Updated documentation relating the Housing 
Options Services and obtained various 
promotional materials 

• Employment of a Sub Regional Co-ordinator to 
assist with the Government Agenda to prevent 
repossessions. 

Page 64



 

 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

• Obtained agreement for Ryedale’s MRS and 
the appointment of an additional part time 
Housing Options Officer. 

• Completed full page spread in Ryedale Local 
News to promote services which included 
informing the community of the actions to 
prevent repossessions 

• Through negotiations with the owner secured 
the lease on Bridge House (Homeless Hostel) 
for a further 12 months 

• External funding secured in order to support 
the employment of a Life Skills and Positive 
activities Officer and a Resettlement Officer on 
a fixed term contract to the 30th September 
2010 to be based at Bridge House 

• Held three Road shows in Malton, Helmsley 
and Pickering to promote the official launch of 
the Housing Options service and the 
Government programme for the prevention of 
Repossessions. 

• Completed the first Shared Equity MRS in the 
region in August 09 

• Finalised a further full MRS due for completion 
Sept/Oct 09 

• Further case to be handed over to the zone 
agent on the 22 September in order for 
mortgage rescue to proceed 

• Three cases successfully negotiated with 
lenders to prevent repossession of the property 
without the need for the MRS. 
 

 
LPI 

 

• To achieve a target of 30 Bond 
Guarantee/Rent in Advance schemes 
undertaken per year 

 Achieved – 13 

• To secure a total of 12 households per year 
through the Ryedale Lettings scheme by 
September 2009 

 Achieved – 11 

• To achieve a total of 163 Homeless 
Preventions in 2009/10 

 Achieved – Figure not available until 30 
Sept 

• Not to exceed a maximum of 54 homeless 
applications per year 

 Achieved – 12 

• To achieve the target of no more than 13 
homeless households in temporary 
accommodation by 31/12/2010 

 Achieved – 14 as at 8 September 2009 
 

Page 65



 

 

 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

 
To address decency issues 
in the private sector and 
the  maintenance of the 
private housing stock in 
general 
 

 

• Approved a total of 7 Home Repair Grants to a 
value of £23,032 and completed 7 grants 
totalling £23,167 from 1 April to 7 September 
2009. 

 

 
Enabling Independent 
Living 

 

• Approved a total of 6 DFG’s to a value of 
£75,042 and completed 21 grants totalling 
£178,875 from 1 April to 7 September 2009. 

 

• Secured a total of 65 new connections to the 
Ryecare Lifeline Service for the period 1 April  
to 7 September 2009  

 

 
To contribute to social 
inclusion and the provision 
of sustainable 
communities 
 

 

• Approved a total of 33 Energy Efficiency 
Grants to a value of £22,009 and completed 17 
grants totalling £18,666 in the period 1 April to 
8 September 2009 

 

 
 
 
OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Richard Etherington, Housing Services 

Manager if you require any further information on the contents 
of this report. The officer can be contacted at Ryedale House, 
Malton telephone number 01653 600666 ext.383 or e-mail: 
richard.etherington@ryedale.gov.uk 

Page 66



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 

PART A 

 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
HEAD OF SERVICE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
    PHIL LONG 
 
REPORTING OFFICER: HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT MANAGER 
    STEVEN RICHMOND 
 
SUBJECT: POLICY IN RELATION TO WILD ANIMALS ON COUNCIL 

OWNED LAND 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For Members to determine a position in relation to the exhibiting/performance of wild 

animals through circuses etc on council owned land. 
 
2.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members continue to consider each application to stage a 

circus with non-domesticated animals on Council land on its own merits and refer any 
such application to the Community Services Committee for decision. 

 
3.0  REASONS SUPPORTING DECISION 
 
3.1 To ensure an up-to-date legal opinion can be sought and ensure Members have the 

opportunity to debate such a decision. 
  
4.0  BACKGROUND 
 
4.1 At a meeting of Community Services Committee on 26 March 2009 during a 

discussion on the proposed policy on the use of car parks, Members expressed 
support for the proposal but were of the opinion that it should include reference to 
any proposed introduction of wild animals through circuses, etc. 

 
4.2 It was resolved in Minute 433 “that a report be submitted to a future meeting of the 

Committee in connection with a policy relating to wild animals on Council owned 
land”. 

 
5.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 During Parliamentary debates on the Animal Welfare Bill, concerns were expressed 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 

about the use of non-domesticated animals in circuses. Ben Bradshaw, the Minister 
for Animal Welfare, announced in March 2006 that he was minded to introduce 
Regulations under the Animal Welfare Act 2006 to ban the use, in travelling circuses, 
of certain non- domesticated species if their welfare needs could not be met in that 
environment.  To assist the Minister in forming a decision a Circus Working Group 
was formed of representatives of the circus industry, animal welfare organisations, 
academics and veterinarians.  The groups’ remit was to look at wild animals (i.e. 
animals not normally domesticated in the British Isles) used for performance in 
travelling circuses. The conclusions were that there was not enough evidence to 
show that the welfare of wild animals in circuses is any better or worse than those 
other captive environments and that available scientific evidence was insufficient to 
justify regulations being introduced to ban wild animals being used in circus 
performances.  If the use of any non-domesticated animals is to remain lawful, the 
issue of blanket bans by local authorities on the use of their land requires further 
consideration.  

 
5.2 Since the publication of the report the Government is considering its position as to 

the issue of primary legislation relating to the banning or further regulation of non-
domesticated animals in circuses. 

 
5.3 There are at present four circuses that use non-domesticated animals which 

approximates to approximately 38 non-domesticated animals.  
 
6.0 REPORT 
 
6.1 The Council has an Animal Welfare Charter that was adopted in March 2002.  No 

mention is made in the Charter of a policy in relation to circuses.  The Council has 
very few areas of land suitable for the holding of a circus and has never been 
approached to host a circus. 

 
6.2 The enforcing authority with regard to performing animals is North Yorkshire County 

Council Trading Standards. Ryedale District Council has no enforcement 
responsibility in relation to performing animals other than normal health and safety 
enforcement and public safety issues. 

 
6.3 In considering any such ban the relevant legislation is S120 (1) (b) of the Local 

Government Act 1972 and Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000. This 
enables Councils to do anything “which they consider likely to achieve, promote or 
improve the social/environmental well being of the area”. In addressing the issue 
Members would have to ensure that the prohibition of circuses with wild animals is 
necessary on objective grounds for the “benefit, improvement or development of their 
area” under section 120, or is it likely to “achieve, promote or improve the social 
/environmental well being of the area”, under Section 2 of the Local Government Act 
2000.   

 
6.4 The decision may not be based purely on moral grounds although it is correct that 

there should be regard for ethical arguments. The argument must be made that it is 
for the benefit of the area that circuses with wild animals should be banned.  It should 
be clear that any ban is in the public interest. Members should be clear that their 
position is not the same as private landowners and that they must have regard to the 
statutory tests contained within section 120 (1)(b).  With regard to the well being 
clause of section 2 of the Local Government Act, it could be argued that the well 
being for some will depend on their satisfaction as to animal welfare.  Any decision to 
ban would be open to legal challenge by way of Judicial Review 

Page 68



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 
 

7.0 OPTIONS 
 
7.1 There are a number of options available to the Council:  

a) to ban all circuses with performing animals from its land;  
b) to limit circuses on their land to ones that have no wild animals e.g. limited to 

horses, dogs, birds etc; or  
c) to decide each case on its merits. 

 
8.0 OPTIONS APPRAISAL 
 
8.1 The option to ban all circuses with performing animals when controls already exist for 

performing animals by North Yorkshire County Council is liable to legal challenge.  
The ban could be reasonable if Council had evidence of mistreatment of animals. 

 
8.2 If the Council wished to widen out the debate to include that there should be no 

animals in circuses at all, any such decision could also lead to legal challenges on a 
much wider front e.g. comparison with other animal users such as horse racing, 
sheepdog trials, police dog displays etc. In addition it is quite possible there may be 
fewer if any objections to performances with just domesticated animals. 

 
8.3 If the Council dealt with any such application for such a circus on its land on an 

individual basis, it could refuse permission on its own land where there is evidence of 
mistreatment, which could be historically based on information provided from other 
sources such as other local authorities. 

 
9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There is no law restricting the use of domesticated or non-domesticated performing 

animals in circuses therefore the Council would have to consider what grounds it had 
to impose a total ban. 

 
10.0  CONCLUSION 

  
10.1 The Council has very little appropriate land in which to hold a circus and has never 

had an approach made to it. The legal position of issuing a blanket ban is not as 
simple as first appears but is open to legal challenge. Given the hypothetical question 
of a request for the staging of a circus with wild (non-domesticated) animals on its 
land it is recommended that the Council should not adopt a blanket ban on circuses 
with wild (non-domesticated) or performing animals but should consider each 
application on its own merits and refer any such application to the Community 
Services Committee for decision. 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Wild animals in traveling circuses – The report of the Chairman of the circus working group 
October 2007 
 
OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Steven Richmond, Health and Environment 

Manager if you require any further information on the contents 
of this report.  The officer can be contacted at Ryedale House, 
Malton on telephone 01653 600666 ext. 247 or e-mail – 
steve.richmond@ryedale.gov.uk. 

 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

PART A 

 
 
REPORT TO:  COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  24 SEPTEMBER 2009  
 
HEAD OF SERVICE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
  PHIL LONG 
 
SUBJECT:  LOW CARBON ECONOMY – REGIONAL INFORMATION 

PAPERS 

    

WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 

 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

 

1.1 To inform and update Members in relation to regional activity and initiatives on the 
low carbon economy in Yorkshire and Humber and in particular  the work of 
Yorkshire Forward, Government Office (GOYH) and the North Yorkshire Strategic 
Partnership (NYSP). 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 It is recommended that Members note the report. 
 

3.0 BACKGROUND 

3.1 At the July meeting of this committee Members recommended to Council a range of 
initiatives to support the achievement of the Council’s CO2 targets. 

 3.2 Attached to this covering report are three papers outlining work across the region to 
help to reduce CO2 emissions and promote a low carbon economy: Annex A – Low 
Carbon Economy Update – Yorkshire Forward; Annex B –  The Climate Change 
Challenge for North Yorkshire - GOYH; and Annex C – A partnership approach to 
climate change – NYSP.  

3.3 The reports are brought to Members principally for information and help to 
demonstrate how Ryedale District Council’s initiatives relate to a wider regional and 
sub-regional context. However, if there are any issues arising from the reports that 
the committee wishes to explore further – either by way of a visit or a presentation – 
this can be brought to a future meeting.  

OFFICER CONTACT: Please contact Phil Long if you require any further information 
on the contents of this report. The officer can be contacted at 
Ryedale House, Malton telephone number 01653 602820 

email: phil.long@ryedale.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX A1 
 

YORK AND NORTH YORKSHIRE PARTNERSHIP EXECUTIVE ITEM 6 
 
4th September 2009 
 
Low Carbon Economy – UPDATE 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
1.1 This report updates the Partnership Executive on the Low Carbon Economy 
developments in Yorkshire and Humber with delivery emphasis in York and North Yorkshire. 
Jim Farmery, Assistant Director for Business at Yorkshire Forward will be attending the meeting  
to verbally update members further 
 
2. Background 

We define a lower-carbon economy as one where managed programmes of carbon-emissions 
reduction are embedded in organisational practices, across both the private and public sectors, 
in response to challenging targets. 

• Due to high levels of industry and traditional power generation, Yorkshire & Humber is a 
high CO2-producing region—and emissions continue to rise here  

• Moving to a LCE is set out in government targets  
• Ignoring climate change will ultimately undermine the economy  
• Acting now to reduce emissions and adapt to new circumstances (such as increased 

flood risk) will cost far less than dealing with the future consequences of climate change  
• Global markets for low-carbon technologies could be worth $500bn by 2050—but our 

region’s share of this market is amongst the lowest in the UK 

Who is Yorkshire Forward trying to influence? 

• Local authorities—because we need political will to change behaviour and deliver 
innovative projects at a local level  

• Business & commerce—because we need businesses to commit to reducing carbon 
emissions  

• Major greenhouse-gas emitters—to commit to significant emissions reductions  
• Public agencies—in terms of sharing resources and ensuring that their plans and 

strategies contribute to the LCE  
• Government departments—such as Defra, BERR and DCLG (Department of 

Communities and Local Government), to ensure that our views are reflected in planning 
decisions 

 2.1 The Yorkshire and Humber (Y&H) Region faces a number of challenges associated with 
delivering sustainable development and a low carbon economy based on sustainable and 
environmental technology. Government White Papers have set both the policy framework and 
specific targets for the next ten years. Most of the targets require action to be taken at regional 
level, and accordingly these targets have been incorporated into the Y&H Regional Economic 
Strategy (RES) and the Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS). 

Agenda Item 8

Page 73



3. Yorkshire & Humber Sustainable Futures Company Ltd ( SFCo) 
 
3.1 In order to assist in delivering these regional targets, the Yorkshire & Humber 
Sustainable Futures Company Ltd (SFCo) was formed by Yorkshire Forward. 
 
The vision of SFCo (soon to be re-named CO2Sense) is to put Yorkshire & Humber at the centre 
of developing a global low carbon economy with the key aim of delivering Yorkshire Forward’s 
sustainable development priorities. SFCo aims to position the region at the centre of the 
developing global low carbon economy and deliver Yorkshire Forward’s sustainable 
development priorities.  Four programmes within SFCo concentrate on the LCE: 
 
• Resource Efficiency Yorkshire (REY) is a new £9.8 million programme working to help 

regional businesses and markets gain competitive advantage through resource efficiency 
improvements.  Over the next three years REY will support regional businesses to use 
water, energy, and waste more efficiently, to introduce greener approaches to design and 
sustainable procurement. REY’s key aim is to support the regions businesses to profit from 
resource efficiency – to spread the word that carbon sense makes commercial sense. There 
are four principal work streams: 

 
1. Policy, Research and Evaluation – making sure we put most effort into what’s most 

important 
2. Regional Resource Efficiency Partnership – integrating national, regional and local 

activity to benefit business 
3. Resource Efficiency Business Support – helping businesses take action to improve their 

resource efficiency (create demand) 
4. Support to Resource Efficiency Sector Businesses – helping companies in the resource 

efficiency sector to find new business and grow (build the supply) 
 
• Future Energy Yorkshire (FEY) has been established to secure the economic 

opportunities arising from new and renewable energy technologies and projects across 
Yorkshire and Humber.  FEY works with both public and private sector partners to fill 
knowledge gaps, bridge market failures and bring to fruition significant new energy projects, 
businesses and technologies, and also provide training and development opportunities. 

 

• Carbon Action Yorkshire (CAY) encourages major organisations within the region 
(collectively responsible for half of the region's carbon emissions) to commit to action to 
meet the target of a 25% cut by 2016.  At present, only 24% of medium to large 
organisations in the region have quantified emissions from their activities, and only 45% of 
these have taken steps to reduce emissions1.  CAY will assess carbon-related risks and 
opportunities; secure quantifiable carbon reduction commitments; calculate baseline carbon 
emissions and benchmark emissions reductions; develop new low carbon products, 
services, technologies; characterise markets for low carbon products and services; and test 
these with partner organisations. 

 
• Carbon Capture and Storage (CCS)  

CO2Sense has recently taken on the responsibility for a Carbon Capture and Storage (CCS) 
programme. CCS is a process where CO2 is extracted from the emissions of, for example, a 
power station or a factory. This CO2 is compressed, and transported to permanent storage in 
a depleted gas field or saline aquifer in the North Sea. The main project activities are: 

                                           

 

Page 74



 
- Developing a world-leading example of a CCS cluster that could reduce the UK’s 

greenhouse gas emissions by 10%, and give a significant boost the region’s 
economy through the down turn. 

- Securing and developing a carbon capture and storage (CCS) facility and network.  
Although this will not be operational before 2014 at the earliest, the first enabling 
investment could be secured by the end of 2009/10.   

- Working with partners in the region, such as Powerfuel Power Ltd, who are at an 
advanced state to implement CCS given the appropriate level of support. 

- Working at national and international levels to raise the profile of the opportunity to 
develop CCS in the region and gain access to financial support through our 
commercial partners, European Commission, EIB and UK Government. 

 
 
3.2        For a detailed list of the projects that are being delivered as part of the SFCo/CO2Sense 
Programme in York & North Yorkshire please see attached Appendix SFCo North Yorkshire 
Projects and examples of case studies. 
 
 
 
Yorkshire Forward 
August 2009 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



David Fraser

Deputy Regional Director  

The Climate Change Challenge 

for North Yorkshire

Deputy Regional Director  

Environment and Corporate Affairs

Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber

david.fraser@goyh.gsi.gov.uk

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 8

P
a
g
e
 7

7



• Climate Projections 09

• The National Challenge

2

• The Regional Response

P
a

g
e
 7

8



UK Climate Projections 09

§ These projections of our future climate have been developed by 

the Met Office paid for by Defra

§ They show us the reality of climate change and help us 

understand both the importance of the need to reduce our 

emissions and adapt to inevitable changes

§ A great deal of information is available including pre-prepared 

maps and graphs, which are available online to anyone maps and graphs, which are available online to anyone 

§ A report ‘Adapting to Climate Change: UK Climate Projections’ 

setting out what the Government is doing on adaptation is 

available, plus further reports on the science underpinning the 

projections by UKCIP

3

P
a
g
e
 7

9



For summer average temperature, we see significant 

increases over the decades to the 2080

2050

+2.3ºC

2020

+1.3ºC
Increased Tourism

Increased Heat stress

Infrastructure risks

Risks to biodiversity

2080

+3.5ºC

4

Yorks & Humber

central estimate

Medium emissions

Heat related deaths

Risk to Food Security

The change for the 2080s is very unlikely to be less than1.8ºC and very unlikely to be more 

than 5.8ºC

P
a

g
e
 8

0



For summer rainfall we could see significant decreases

Reduced stream 

flow and water 

quality

Increased drought

Subsidence

2050s

-17%

2020s

-7%

5

Decreased crop 

yields

Serious water stress

2080s

-22%

For the 2080s the change is very unlikely to be lower than -43% and very unlikely to be higher 

than  +1%

Yorks & Humber

central estimate

Medium emissions

P
a
g
e
 8

1



For winter rainfall we see significant increases

Increased winter 

flooding

Increased subsidence

Risks to urban 

drainage

2050s

+11%

2020s

+4.1%

6

Severe Transport 

disruption

Risks of national 

Infrastructure

2080s

+15%

For the 2080s the change is very unlikely to be lower than +2% and very unlikely to be 

higher than +33%

Yorks & Humber

central estimate

Medium Emissions

P
a

g
e
 8

2



Along the coast: significant  sea level rises

2040

Bridlington: 18cm

Hull: 18cm

2080

Bridlington: 36cm

Hull: 37cm

P
a
g
e
 8

3



How to access and learn

about the projections

• Further information on the Defra website at: 

www.defra.gov.uk/adaptation

• For access to the UKCP User Interface go to:

http://ukclimateprojections.defra.gov.ukhttp://ukclimateprojections.defra.gov.uk

• Projections in Practice week –seven different sessions  

21-24th September, Leeds

bookwhen.com/pip-week-yorkshireandhumber

8

P
a

g
e
 8

4



The National Challenge on Climate Change

• Climate Change Act - at least an 80% cut in 
greenhouse gas emissions by 2050, to be 
achieved through action in the UK and abroad. 

• Also a reduction in emissions of at least 34% by 
2020. 

• Low Carbon Transition Plan includes 40% of • Low Carbon Transition Plan includes 40% of 
electricity will be from low carbon sources, from 
renewables, nuclear and clean coal by 2020

• Renewable Energy Strategy – 15% energy from 
renewables by 2020

P
a
g
e
 8

5



Regionally Existing plans and strategies will not 

deliver our CO2 reduction targets

P
a

g
e
 8

6



Regional Response

P
a
g
e
 8

7



• Strategy and monitoring

• The built environment

• Transport

• Health Services

• Business

• Land management 

Key Priorities

• Land management 

• Citizen engagement

• Mostly being taken forward by existing groups and 

Boards – progress reported to Partnership

P
a

g
e
 8

8



• Energy

• Waste

Cross Cutting Themes

• Waste

• Water

P
a
g
e
 8

9



Regional Coordination

• a responsive document

• a living document

• adaptation taken forward

• monitoring and review• monitoring and review

P
a

g
e
 9

0



Delivery Mechanisms

• Integrated regional strategy

• Regional improvement and efficiency 

partnership

• Local area agreements• Local area agreements

• Networks

P
a
g
e
 9

1



Top ten interventions to cut regional carbon emissions study (June 

2009) 

– identified the “top 10” most viable and cost effective 

interventions, which together could reduce the region’s carbon 

emissions baseline by up to 23% by 2020 (compared to a 2006 

baseline)

– On basis of energy consumption, in 2006 Y&H emitted 53.3 

Information on how to act - mitigation

– On basis of energy consumption, in 2006 Y&H emitted 53.3 

million tonnes of carbon dioxide:

• 53% Industry and Commerce

• 24% Domestic

• 22 % Road Transport

• 1% Land use, Land use change & Forestry

P
a

g
e
 9

2



Total regional carbon emissions 

by local authority, 2006

Source: SQW Energy using data from Defra 2006

P
a
g
e
 9

3



Local Authority Industry & 

Commerce

Domestic Road 

Transport

Total

Craven 176 159 208 548

Hambleton 337 235 498 1104

Harrogate 492 443 691 1663

Richmondshire 134 128 294 556

Areas of potential impact by source and 

local authority area (ktCO2)

Ryedale 242 141 215 625

Scarborough 331 302 202 841

Selby 569 212 465 1260

North Yorkshire 

Total

2281 1620 2573 6597

Source: Defra 2008 

P
a

g
e
 9

4



Information on how to act - adaptation

www.adaptyh.co.uk

P
a
g
e
 9

5



Local Impacts and Adaptations

P
a

g
e
 9

6



Key Messages

North Yorkshire is at particularly at risk from the impacts of climate 

change and we have to prepare for this.  The new projections confirm 

that if we fail to act to reduce emissions this could get much worse 

across the county in years to come.

Confirms determination to act rapidly now and utilise our natural 

resources and people to take up the fight against climate change –

21

resources and people to take up the fight against climate change –

leading the way on our own behaviour, on many forms of renewable 

energy and green jobs of all types.

We also see this as a way to help us move forward sustainably from the 

current economic down turn and to help our communities to reduce 

other problems such as fuel poverty

P
a
g
e
 9

7



Further information

David Fraser

Deputy Regional Director  

Environment and Corporate Affairs

Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber

david.fraser@goyh.gsi.gov.uk

0113 341 2704

P
a

g
e
 9

8



Comprehensive Area Assessment 

A partnership approach to climate 

change 
(CAA)
change 

Janet Waggott, Chief Executive of Ryedale District 

Council and Chair of the Stronger/Rural Partnership

10 September 2009

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 8

P
a
g
e
 9

9



Summary

• Why climate change is important for the NYSP• Why climate change is important for the NYSP

• Progress to date (inc. LAA / National Indicators)

• Barriers/challenges

• Looking forward  and how you can help

P
a
g

e
 1

0
0



Why is this important?

• The NYSP will be assessed
- Sustainable Community Strategy / Local Area Agreement

- Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)- Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA)

• Financial savings
- Internally within organisations 

- The wider community e.g. reduced energy bills, alleviating fuel poverty

• National / regional drivers

• Public expectations 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
1



Progress to date

• The Stronger / Rural Partnership is establishing the 

delivery mechanism delivery mechanism 

• Delivery groups working on climate change related LAA 

targets / National Indicators 

• Lots of projects/initiatives delivered by individual 

organisations across NY 

• Other areas of success that impact upon climate change 

e.g. increase in recycling, more efficient use of resources 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
2



NI 185 CO2 reduction from Local 

Authority operations

• LAA indicator • LAA indicator 

• County Council, 7 District Councils and 2 National Parks 

responsible 

• Baseline 2008/09 – 63% of total NYCC, 11% Harrogate 

BC, 7% Scarborough BC, 7% Selby DC, 5% Hambleton 

DC, others > 2.2%

• Schools account for approx. 70% of NYCC total 

• Local Authority plans / sharing of best practice

P
a
g
e
 1

0
3



NI 186 Per capita reduction in CO2 

emissions

• LAA indicator

• All NYSP partners responsible

• Delivery group implementing action plan – priorities 

include:

- Co-ordinated countywide communications

- Support for business / schools

- Supporting micro-generation schemes 

- Empowering the voluntary sector 

- Training events e.g. guidance for planners

P
a
g

e
 1

0
4



NI 188 Planning to adapt to climate 

change

• National Indicator – only local authorities required to 

report – but implications for all NYSP partnersreport – but implications for all NYSP partners

• Currently at Level 0 (Levels 0-4). In order to progress and 

achieve Level 1we need to: 

- Make a public commitment to identify and manage climate related risk

- Assess what existing strategies and plans are already in place e.g. 

flood management

- Undertake a local risk based assessment 

- Undertake a gap analysis to identify those risks not addressed in 

existing strategies and communicate these risks to appropriate people 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
5



Barriers / challenges 

• No shared Countywide leadership

• Joining up all of the activity - complex• Joining up all of the activity - complex

• Other competing priorities

• Resources – need to maximise / pool resources

• Difficult to demonstrate tangible outcomes / impact  

• Seen as a stand alone ‘environmental’ issue – other 

impacts e.g. health and social care provision 

• Green fatigue 

P
a
g

e
 1

0
6



Issues around rurality

• Road transport

• More difficult to save energy in older/more • More difficult to save energy in older/more 

isolated housing stock

• Large number of Small to Medium Sized 

Enterprises (SMEs) 

• Lots of partners – who is responsible for what?

• Communications noise

P
a
g
e
 1

0
7



Looking forward

• We need to deliver clear leadership?• We need to deliver clear leadership?

• We need to coordinate and join up all of the activity?

• We need to maximise our resources?

• What is the best role for other NYSP thematic 

partnerships to contribute to and  play?

P
a
g

e
 1

0
8



Next Steps

• The NYSP Executive will receive a climate change 

report on 1 October 2009report on 1 October 2009

• Your input today will be fed into the appropriate group 

• Further updates will be provided

• For all to be committed and actively involved

• RIEP Climate Change Leadership Programme  

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



Overview of the session

• Climate change is important• Climate change is important

• Progress has been made

• There are a number of barriers / challenges 

• Climate change is a partnership issue that extends 

beyond political / organisational boundaries

• The NYSP must demonstrate commitment and  

leadership  

P
a
g

e
 1

1
0



Contacts 

• NI 185 CO2 reduction from local authority 
operations – Michael Graham, 
m.graham@northyorkmoors-npa.org.uk or 01439 m.graham@northyorkmoors-npa.org.uk or 01439 
770657 

• NI 186 Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions, 
matt.lewer@est-nyh.org.uk or 01904 554423

• NI 188 Planning to adapt to climate change, 
noel.collings@hambleton.gov.uk or 01609 
767160

P
a
g
e
 1

1
1



P
a
g

e
 1

1
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

PART B 

 

 
REPORT TO:  COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 

DATE:  24 SEPTEMBER 2009  

 

HEAD OF SERVICE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 

  PHIL LONG 

 

SUBJECT:  MONTHLY WINTER GARDEN WASTE COLLECTION PILOT

  

WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 

 

 
1.0       PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider the implementation of a monthly collection system pilot for garden waste 

during the winter month’s to reduce operational miles travelled, facilitate reductions in 
CO2 emissions and secure efficiency savings.  

  
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Council is recommended to approve: 

(i) A pilot scheme to reduce the frequency of winter garden waste collections 
across the district from alternate weekly to once every four weeks during 
December, January and February 2009/10 to reduce CO2 emissions and 
secure efficiency savings. 

(ii) Outcomes from the pilot to be reported back to Community Services 
Committee following the trial for consideration.  

 
3.0      INTRODUCTION 
 
3.1 The Government has a long-term goal to reduce carbon emissions by 80 per cent by 

2050. All local authorities are now under a duty, under the National Indicator regime, 
to report on a new set of indicators regarding carbon dioxide emissions, air quality 
and adaptation to climate change. 

 
3.2 One of the key aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan is to have a “High Quality and 

Sustainable Environment”. At Community Services 23 July 2009 members approved 
challenging CO2 reduction targets of 2% in 2009/2010 and 3% in 2010/2011 (NI 186).  

 
3.3 As detailed previously (Community Services Committee 23 July 2009) it is 

anticipated that this would be realised by energy efficiency improvements in Council 
owned buildings, that is the boiler replacement programme for Derwent Pool, 
Ryedale Pool and Ryedale House, following significant investment committed by the 
Council of £318,000 through the capital programme). Tenders have been received 
and works are anticipated to start in October 2009. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 113



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

3.4 The report of the 23 July also highlighted officer’s intention to carry out further work 
targeted at reducing vehicle miles with the view to potentially increase 2010/11 
emission reduction targets once outcomes have been analysed.  

 
3.5 Currently approximately 45% of RDC’s total CO2 emissions come from transport 

movements (the remaining 55% from buildings and street lighting). Of this 77% can 
be attributed to the 474,066 miles travelled by the operational vehicle fleet.  

 
4.0 REPORT 
 
4.1 The action recommended will facilitate performance delivery against the Councils 

Corporate Plan through the reduction of operational miles travelled, having the 
potential to: 

• Reduce CO2 emissions. 

• Contribute to carbon reduction targets and planning of adaptation to climate 
change. 

• Secure immediate efficiency savings with the potential for more in the future. 
 

4.2 With reference to Diagram 1 Garden waste tonnages start to significantly reduce 
from in the winter months from the end November, in particular during December, 
January and February before gradually increasing again in March. Similar patterns 
can be seen in previous years (Annex A). 
 
Diagram 1: Monthly Tonnages of garden waste collected during 2008/09. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
4.3 Currently during the winter period staffing levels are reduced on rounds as far as 

practicable, however set out rates of garden waste bins by the public are inconsistent 
over this period, making it difficult to accurately predict staffing levels on a daily 
basis, effectively increasing unit costs per tonne garden waste collected by 
comparison with other months.  

 
4.4 Moving to monthly garden waste collection during the winter months when tonnage 

reduces has the potential to increase bin set out rates enhancing efficiency, reducing 
collection costs and reducing CO2 emissions, through potential savings in fuel, 
mileage, overtime and longer term staffing.efficiencies  

 
4.5 Operational Practicalities of moving to Monthly Garden Waste Collections 
 
4.5.1 Staffing: Currently weekly collections rounds in the District are split between refuse 

and garden waste collections (i.e. Round 4 refuse, Round 5 garden waste etc) As 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Tonnes

 

Page 114



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

such effectively 3.0 vehicles and 7.5 staff are used to collect garden waste each 
week. Initially, for the pilot, staff would be reassigned duties e.g. leaf collection, 
gritting, bin delivery etc, encouraged to take holidays, sickness cover etc. Longer-
term, staff efficiencies have the potential to unlock further savings. 

4.5.2 Vehicle Capacity: Analysis of individual rounds (Annex A) indicates that vehicle 
capacity will be able to accommodate monthly collection tonnage during December, 
January and February.   

4.5.3 Customer Information: A critical success factor is the clear communication of 
changes to the public. From experience collection day and frequency changes are 
difficult messages to convey. This is a crucial area to address with the added 
complications of Christmas bank holidays to factor in.  

4.5.4 Customer satisfaction: Satisfaction with alternate weekly collections (AWC) is 
inherently lower than weekly collection systems Customers could see monthly 
collections as a further diminution of the service. Encouragement of Carbon emission 
reduction is inherently difficult and challenging requiring a sustained cultural change 
in behavior and consumer choices. The proposal is an opportunity to reinforce this 
message. As such the communication strategy needs to be carefully considered to 
educate, inform and minimise disruption.   

4.5.5 Bin Storage Capacity: Analysis indicates that customers would have more than 
adequate storage capacity for green waste over the winter months. Due to the 
season smells etc should be at minimum, though bins are well sealed in any event. A 
number of other Districts operate monthly collections of garden waste in winter with 
no apparent difficulty or adverse affect.  

4.5.6 Christmas collection: Monthly winter garden waste collections create opportunity 
for revised arrangements over the Christmas period to be considered. Enhanced 
staffing availability and vehicle capacity could help to reduce overtime, negate the 
need to hire in additional RCV’s and minimise customer disruption. 

 
5.0 OPTIONS 
 
5.1 There are two potential options:  
 

OPTION 1: Four weekly garden waste collections during December and 
January. 

• Mileage reduction est. 6,007 miles. 

• Fuel savings est. £9,630 (2009/10) 

• Carbon savings potential of up to 29.1 tonnes est. up to 1% 
reduction on RDC total emissions. (2009/10) (NI 186) 

• Vehicle hire savings over Christmas/New year: £2000. 
 
Option 1- Appraisal: 

• Limited savings by comparison with Option 2. 

• The shorter period might limit the perception of a reduced service, 
but could compound communication difficulties due to Christmas 
and New Year bank holiday day changes. 

• Officers consider the period too short to allow the changes to 
adequately settle down before changing back to fortnightly. 

 
OPTION 2:  Four weekly garden waste collections from around the end 

November to early March- essentially 3 months 

• Mileage reduction: est. 8,677 miles 

• Fuel savings est. £13,910. (2009/10) 

• Carbon savings potential of up to 42.07 tonnes est. around 2% 
reduction on RDC total emissions. (2009/10).(NI186) 

Page 115



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

• Vehicle hire savings over Christmas/New year: £2000. 

• Potential recurring efficiency savings in future years could be 
established of around £8,000.  

  
 Option 2- Appraisal: 

• Enhanced savings by comparison with Option 1 

• Clear evidence that tonnage is down over the 3-month period by 
reference to Diagram 1. 

• Longer time period to mitigate against confusion over Christmas 
and New Year changes. 

• Longer time period should help the change to settle down before 
resuming fortnightly collections. 

• Due to the longer time period the option has the potential of 
additional efficiency gains in future years of an estimated £8000 
per annum. 

 
5.2 An investigatory ROUTESMART project has also been commissioned aimed at 

identifying further potential efficiencies through optimisation of collection rounds and 
reducing miles travelled. This has further potential to reduce emission levels and 
secure efficiency savings. 

 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 OPTION 2 should help RDC to realise efficiency savings short term of £15,910 

(2009/10), with the potential of further efficiency gains in future years (2010/11) of 
around £8,000. Within the Council’s budgetary framework it is important that 
additional efficiency savings are constantly identified as expectations of future cuts in 
Government grant, if not able to be financed from efficiencies, will lead to cuts in 
services. 

 
7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1  None  
 
8.0 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
8.1 Financial Risk: None 

 
8.2 Strategic Risk:. The option underpins RDC’s commitment to carbon reduction with 

the potential of enhanced emission reduction targets, environmental performance 
and efficiency savings. 
 

8.3 Environmental Risk: The significant risk is that the Council it does not make sufficient 
improvement in this priority area. This will be mitigated through the implementation of 
Option 2 as recommended and performance monitoring. A further potential risk could 
be the loss of green waste tonnage, though this is unlikely given the bins storage  
capacity.  
 

8.4 Reputational Risk: The public could view the initiative as being a diminution of 
service. This can be mitigated by good communication of the environmental 
message, press coverage, individual bin tags, use of vehicle Agrippa system etc but 
historically any round change notification is an initial challenge despite individual bin 
tagging, media notification etc. 

 

Page 116



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  24 SEPTEMBER 2009 
 

 

9.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
9.1 The Council has made significant strides in actions to reduce CO2 emissions and 

challenging targets have been set. Implementation the changes recommended in this 
report would help to reduce CO2 emissions and enable RDC to exceed the emission 
reduction targets set as well as realise cashable efficiency savings. Meeting long-
term Government emission reduction targets will continue to be a real challenge, 
requiring significant further investment. 

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None 
 
 
OFFICER CONTACT:  Please contact Phil Long if you require any further information 

on the contents of this report. The officer can be contacted at 
Ryedale House, Malton telephone number 01653 602820 

     Email: phil.long@ryedale.gov.uk 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Green Waste 06/07 07/08 08/09 ANNEX A

monthly

R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10 totals

April 118.28 116.58 58.10 62.46 79.00 60.94 8.44 503.80

May 160.06 222.62 93.68 125.47 112.10 107.66 31.88 853.47

June 171.19 230.18 102.82 141.30 124.98 136.92 23.86 931.25

July 122.46 128.34 83.28 60.94 84.70 69.64 14.80 564.16

August 136.82 150.16 110.40 79.52 94.46 84.44 18.24 674.04

September 185.30 195.88 113.94 111.66 106.84 105.86 25.74 845.22

October 132.40 202.44 93.48 105.70 85.92 101.34 20.36 741.64

November 118.52 136.72 73.22 73.74 75.16 93.18 19.96 590.50

December 61.08 54.72 38.48 29.96 38.20 38.50 8.00 268.94

January 54.60 50.32 48.04 29.22 42.72 34.42 6.20 265.52

February 45.36 56.28 34.42 33.86 32.14 40.04 7.50 249.60

March 107.42 84.24 68.36 45.08 61.64 51.28 8.66 426.68

Total for Year 1413.49 1628.48 918.22 898.91 937.86 924.22 193.64

Total Dec to Feb 161.04 161.32 120.94 93.04 113.06 112.96 21.70

% of Total Year 11.39 9.91 13.17 10.35 12.06 12.22 11.21

Total Green 0607

6914.82

monthly

R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10 totals

April 149.66 189.84 112.57 89.66 92.64 104.00 22.00 760.37

May 150.14 187.84 109.94 117.96 104.06 113.34 34.42 817.70

June 139.16 204.54 105.48 123.82 95.02 132.87 30.22 831.11

July 156.62 168.80 133.00 101.49 119.00 113.67 43.02 835.60

August 175.45 162.60 118.70 89.44 117.12 96.96 26.36 786.63

September 120.70 156.52 88.46 83.16 68.04 87.04 20.52 624.44

October 127.64 180.86 78.28 93.88 76.30 99.66 24.82 681.44

November 112.12 136.06 66.16 69.80 61.06 88.14 14.92 548.26

December 59.36 45.36 47.90 24.48 39.46 26.14 7.70 250.40

January 48.20 50.00 45.50 29.44 42.14 32.56 7.78 255.62

February 49.80 59.55 50.06 37.00 38.46 36.74 8.48 280.09

Green Waste Summary 06/07

Green Waste Summary 07/08

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

T
O
N
N
A
G
E

GREEN WASTE 06/07
R4

R5

R6

R7

R8

R9

R10

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

GREEN WASTE 07/08
R4

R5

R6

R7

R8

R9

R10

February 49.80 59.55 50.06 37.00 38.46 36.74 8.48 280.09

March 49.16 71.70 42.68 37.88 37.62 43.62 8.34 291.00

Total for Year 1338.01 1613.67 998.73 898.01 890.92 974.74 248.58

Total Dec to Feb 157.36 154.91 143.46 90.92 120.06 95.44 23.96

% of Total Year 11.76 9.60 14.36 10.12 13.48 9.79 9.64

Total Green 0708

6962.66

monthly

R4 R5 R6 R7 R8 R9 R10 totals

April 93.80 122.58 69.94 81.12 61.52 74.67 21.58 525.21

May 192.62 281.62 138.58 156.58 124.90 167.16 43.14 1104.60

June 179.35 189.41 137.90 114.53 131.22 121.98 31.72 906.11

July 187.44 174.44 144.58 105.52 133.14 116.82 34.74 896.68

August 170.86 169.22 134.28 99.78 103.00 113.10 32.93 823.17

September 151.30 227.68 113.80 128.50 101.44 131.74 55.14 909.60

October 128.62 178.14 88.24 106.61 82.06 128.70 33.68 746.05

November 152.60 117.02 72.92 51.00 63.52 120.12 14.74 591.92

December 52.54 38.56 49.80 25.14 43.46 27.82 6.46 243.78

January 52.74 53.50 44.42 34.54 38.44 35.32 10.08 269.04

February 46.98 40.14 38.58 27.83 35.30 24.00 5.24 218.07

March 100.08 133.56 70.66 71.68 63.02 72.78 28.96 540.74

Total for Year 1508.93 1725.87 1103.70 1002.83 981.02 1134.21 318.41

Total Dec to Feb 152.26 132.20 132.80 87.51 117.20 87.14 21.78

% of Total Year 10.09 7.66 12.03 8.73 11.95 7.68 6.84

Total Green 0809

7774.97

Green Waste Summary 08/09

0.00

0.00

50.00

100.00

150.00

200.00

250.00

300.00

GREEN WASTE 08/09
R4

R5

R6

R7

R8

R9

R10

6400.00

6600.00

6800.00

7000.00

7200.00

7400.00

7600.00

7800.00

8000.00

06/07 07/08 08/09

Total Green Waste

Agenda Item 9

Page 119



Page 120

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Performance and Finance Report - Council Aims 1 - 4
	Part A - HE HEH HP Performance and Finance report - Annex A - Final
	Part A - HE HEH HP - Performance and Finance Report - Annex A1 - Final
	Part A - HE HEH HP - Performance and Finance Report - Annex A2 - Final

	6 Housing - Performance Report
	7 Policy in Relation to Wild Animals on Council Owned Land
	8 Low Carbon Economy - Regional Information Papers
	Part A - HE - Low Carbon Economy - Annex A1 - Final
	Part A - HE - Low Carbon Economy - Annex B - Final.doc
	Part A - HE - Low Carbon Economy - Annex C - Final.doc

	9 Monthly Winter Garden Waste Collection Pilot
	Part B - HE -  Monthly Winter Garden Waste Collections - Annex A - Final


